
 
 

 Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Susan Bell 49587 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
Receive comments regarding the annual written plans for the 0108 Records 
Management Preservation Fund and 0129 County Clerk’s Records Archival Fund 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The County Court Records Archival Fee and County Clerk Records Management Fee 
are authorized in Texas Local Government Code 118.0216 and 118.025, respectively.  
The County Clerk is required to hold a public hearing on this plan and to publish notice 
of such hearing in a newspaper no later than 15 days prior to the hearing.  The Notice 
was published on Sunday, August 17, 2014, in the Austin Statesman for a September 
16, 2014 hearing date. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
John Hille, County Attorney  49415 
 
For information purposes: 
Alan Miller, Planning and Budget  49726 
Steven Broberg, RMCR  49575 

 

Item 1Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Dana DeBeauvoir  Travis County Clerk 
PO Box 149325, Austin TX 78714-9325  |  Phone: (512) 854-9188  |  Website: www.traviscountyclerk.org 

 
 

FY15 Plan for Use of the County Clerk’s 
Records Management and Preservation Fund 0108 

and Records Archive Fund 0129 
 
The Records Management and Preservation Fund, outlined in Section 118.0216 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, is for, “the records management and preservation services performed 
by the county clerk after the filing and recording of a document in the records of the office of 
the clerk.”  This section also states, “the county clerk shall prepare an annual written plan for 
funding the automation projects and records management and preservation services performed 
by the clerk.”  
 
The County Clerk’s Records Archive Fund, outlined in 118.025 of the Local Government Code, 
states that the fee for "Records Archive" under Section 118.011(f) is for, “the preservation and 
restoration services performed by the county clerk in connection with maintaining a county 
clerk's records archive.”  This section states, “the county clerk shall prepare an annual written 
plan for funding the preservation and restoration of the county clerk’s records archive.” 
 
This document serves as the written plan for both of these funds. 
 
Long Term Plan for the Use of these Funds 
The Travis County Clerk’s library of permanent real property records dates prior to 1836 and 
contains over 30,000,000 pages of documents.  There are three important categories of these 
documents: 
 

April 1999 – present Documents are electronically imaged and have a computerized 
index. 

1987 – 1999 Documents are microfilmed and have a computerized index. 
1836 – 1987 Documents are microfilmed and have microfilmed copies of 

handwritten indexes. 
 

Our primary goals are to use these funds to: 
 

• Provide and maintain systems for managing the receiving, filing, storage, retrieval, and 
public access of records in the Clerk’s Office 
This includes projects to acquire, implement, manage, update, and replace systems that 
handle paper, microfilm, and electronic records.   

• Improve public access to County Clerk records 
This enhances the public’s ability to locate the records they are seeking by building 
advanced databases and improving internet access to information. 

• Provide appropriate physical and electronic storage sites for libraries with the ability 
to retrieve information as needed 
This includes maintaining physical storage sites for paper, microfilm, and electronic 
medium as well as electronic storage of data and back-up systems. 

  

Recording, Elections, Computer Resources, Accounting, and Administration Divisions  
5501 Airport Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78751-1410 

Misdemeanor Records, Civil/Probate/Commissioners Court Minutes, and Records Management Divisions 
1000 Guadalupe, Austin, Texas 78701-2328 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 

 
• Reduce the use of paper documents filed in our Recording, Civil/Probate, and 

Misdemeanor Divisions  
This is accomplished by improving our ability to electronically accept newly filed 
documents and convert existing paper and microfilm records to electronic records.  

• Remove personal identifiers from documents before they are made available on the 
internet 
Redaction of certain personal information such as Social Security and bank account 
numbers is done to help protect individuals from identity theft.  

• Digitize existing County Clerk records and redact personal identifiers 
Digitizing paper and microfilm records increases protection of documents from disaster, 
dramatically increases the ability to track and locate documents, provides a clearer 
more readable image of documents, and greatly improves efficiency for the retrieval of 
documents by the public.   

• Make certain that appropriate disaster recovery and business resumption systems are 
in place 
Ensuring that a detailed structure is in place to prevent loss of these records in the event 
of a disaster is directly associated with protecting the archive and therefore, related to 
the primary intent of this legislation. 

• Apply special preservation methods to documents of significant historic value 
Modern preservation techniques should be applied to paper documents that merit 
special consideration, such as Sam Houston’s will.   

• Support personnel necessary to support these goals. 
This allows us to provide salaries, benefits, training, space, and equipment for 
individuals charged with managing these priorities. 
 

FY15 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 0108 RECORDS MANAGEMENT FUND 
 

Personnel $  776,736 
 

Office Equipment and Supplies 194,480 
 

Maintenance Agreements 205,000 
 

Training and Seminars 70,000 
 

Computer Equipment Purchases 52,570 
 
Recording Software Replacement 800,000 
 

Facility Changes  140,148 
These changes will provide work space for employees performing records 
management activities and secured areas for storing equipment and supplies 
associated with records management activities. 

 

Estimated Reserves 1,382,114 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds 

may be used for items such as additional temporary personnel 
resources, equipment, or professional services necessary for records 
management projects; replacement computer equipment; or a 
supplement to salaries following actions such as performance based pay 
increases, reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

  TOTAL $3,621,048 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
 

FY15 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 0129 RECORDS ARCHIVE FUND 
 

Personnel  $  296,856 
 

Contribution to the Office of Travis County Records Management and 370,523 
Communication 

These costs cover expenses related to offsite storage and the salary of an 
imaging production technician. 

 

Digitizing and Indexing Permanent Library of Real Property Records and 310,973 
 Criminal Minutes 

This is the continuation of the project to convert microfilm to digital 
images and create computer indexes for each image for all real property 
documents recorded between 1836 and 1987.  This project has expanded 
to include the redaction of personal identifiers from internet images.  We 
are also working to digitize microfilm copies of criminal minutes to 
increase retrieval capabilities and improve expunction procedures. 

 

Ongoing Transfer to General Fund for Personnel Costs 7,702 
 

Computer Equipment 90,000 
 

Estimated Reserves 2,819,147 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds may 

be used for items such as additional temporary personnel resources, 
equipment, or professional services necessary for records management 
projects; replacement computer equipment; or a supplement to salaries 
following actions such as performance based pay increases, 
reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

 

  TOTAL $3,895,201 
 
 
For more information, please contact the Travis County Clerk’s Office at (512) 854-9188. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



             
 

 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By:  Paul Scoggins, Engineering Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager:   Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range Planning 

 
Department Head:  Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 
       
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the 
filing of an instrument to vacate two five foot wide public utility easements located 
along the common lot line of Lots 5 and 6, Block C of Aqua Monte – Precinct Three.   
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:   
TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate 
two five foot wide public utility easements (PUEs) located along the common lot line 
of Lots 5 and 6, Block C of Aqua Monte.  The easements are shown schematically 
on the plat.  Lots 5 and 6 front on Heathcliff Drive, a street not maintained by Travis 
County.  
 
The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 
vacating the subject easements.  Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 
The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 
vacating the subject easements.  Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 
meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 
inquiries in regards to this request.  As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   
According to the request letter the owner would like to construct a house and its 
onsite septic system on Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block C of the Aqua Monte subdivision.  
Vacating the easements between Lots 5 and 6 should resolve any potential 
encroachment issues.  There are not any dedicated easements between Lots 4 and 
5. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
None. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 2Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation  
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:   
 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR - Development 
Services 

(512) 854-7561 

                        
                        
                        
 
CC:    
Stacey Scheffel Program Manager TNR-Permits (512) 854-7565 
                        
                        
                        
 
SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services  Long Range Planning - Aqua Monte 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: Sept 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Bob Moore   49387  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Gerald 
Daugherty 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe and      
Commissioner Daugherty  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to approve 
Travis County Commissioners Court letter of support for the Lower 
Colorado River Authority’s Water Management Plan.   
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS:  see letter 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 4Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2 to Interlocal 
Agreement No. 4400001128 for Texas AgriLife Extension Service to 
provide wildlife damage management services. 
 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran Services 
(TCHHSVS) requests the renewal of the Interlocal Agreement with 
Texas AgriLife Extension Service (TAES) for wildlife damage 
management services. Since 2005, TAES has provided services for 
wildlife damage management in Travis County. The goals of the 
program are to reduce threats to property, health and safety caused by 
coyotes and other wildlife.  

The agreement pays for a full-time wildlife biologist to respond to 
complaints about damage caused by wildlife and to remedy the problem 
by public education, wildlife behavior modification and, if necessary, 
removal. 

This Modification No. 2 will renew the agreement for an additional 12 
months from October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015.  The not to 
exceed amount will be $52,682.00.   

Modification No. 1 renewed this agreement for 13 months, from 
September 1, 2013 to September 30, 2014 to align the contract with the 
County’s fiscal year.  The not to exceed amount for this 13 month 
renewal period was $57,072.00. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 5Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 13 months $57,072.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information:  

Award Amount: $52,600    
Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement   
Contract Period: September 1, 2012 – August 31, 2013 
   

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  $52,682.00  
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  October 1, 2014 – September 30, 2015 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  Funds Center 1580420001; Commitment Item 

511900 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 1 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 2 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 3 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 4 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 5 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 6 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 7 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 8 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 9 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 10 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4400001128 Modification 2 
Page 11 of 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Lori Clyde/44205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:   
A) Approve FY2014 Resource Sharing Addendum to Contract No. 
4400001084 (H T E Contract No. IL120165LC), Texas Conference of 
Urban Counties, for the Tyler Odyssey Case Management System 
used by the Justices of the Peace. 

B) Approve Modification No. 1 to Contract No. 4400001061 (H T E 
Contract No. PS120166LC), Tyler Technologies, Inc., for the Software 
as a Service and Professional Services Agreement for the Odyssey 
Case Management System.   

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:   
 
Implementation of the Resource Sharing Addendum for the 
TechShare.Common Integrated Justice System was delayed due to 
ongoing negotiations with the CUC and Tyler as follows: 
 
A) Decrease the amount paid to the CUC for CUC Oversight (Contract 
Administration) from $31,793 to $14,011; and 
B) Reduce the number of users and annual SaaS fee from 157 to 135 
and from $211,950 to $182,250, respectively.   
 
The total cost of the FY2014 Resource Sharing Addendum, which 
includes the annual SaaS fee, Data Conversion services and CUC 
Oversight, is $208,961.00.    
 
ITS recommends approval of the FY2014 Resource Sharing Addendum 
and the Tyler Technologies Addendum.  During the extended 
negotiation period, no lapse in services occurred.   
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 6Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $316,599.50 has 
been spent against this contract. 
 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  $208,961.00   
Modification Type:    Resource Addendum 
Modification Period:  January 1, 2014 – March 31, 2015 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Funds Reservation #:  300001062 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



TEXAS C ieice of

Urban Counties

Texas Conference of Urban Counties
TechShare Program

TechShare.Common Integrated Justice System
FY2014 Resource Sharing Addendum

1. Purpose

1.1. This Resource Sharing Addendum for the TechShare.Common Integrated Justice System
(hereinafter “this Addendum”) is an addendum to the Master Interlocal Agreement For Participation
In The Texas Conference of Urban Counties TechShare Program.

1.2. This Addendum is entered into by and among the Texas Conference of Urban Counties (“Urban
Counties”) and the Participants.

1.3. Each of the undersigned Participants is a signatory to the Master ILA.

1.4. To the extent that any provision of this Addendum conflicts with the terms and conditions of any
provision of the Master ILA, then this Addendum governs.

2. Definitions

Capitalized terms used in this Addendum have the meanings as set forth in the Master ILA. The following
capitalized terms, not otherwise fully defined within this Addendum, have the following meanings:

2.1. CIJS Court Administration System: The software modules offered by Tyler to Participants under the
Master Agreement.

2.2. Go Live: Go Live is defined as the event whereby a Participant makes a module of the CIJC Court
Administration System fully active so that users can access it for its intended purposes.

2.3. Master ILA: The Master Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Urban Counties TechShare
Program, Version 2.1 20130128.

2.4. Master Agreement: The Master Agreement is the CUC Master Agreement between Tyler
Technologies, Inc., and Urban Counties entered into on September 8, 2009, including any
amendments thereto, which sets forth the terms and conditions whereby Urban Counties offers
licensing and support services for the CIJS Court Administration System.

2.5. Oversight Board: Oversight Board means the TechShare Justice Oversight Board.

2.6. Participants: Participants is defined as all local governments executing this Addendum.

2.7. Parties: Parties is defined as the Participants and Urban Counties.

2.8. Stakeholder Committee: Stakeholder Committee means the CIJS Stakeholder Committee as
provided for in the Master ILA.

2.9. Tyler: Tyler means Tyler Technologies, Inc.

3. Term of Addendum

3.1. This 2014 Resource Sharing Addendum shall be effective for the period specified in Attachment A —

Financial Plan.

T hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
,

ec are Page 1 of 9, November 2013

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



4. 2014 Financial Plan

4.1. The 2014 Financial Plan for each Participant is attached as Attachment A.

4.2. As additional Participants execute this Addendum, Participants may be eligible for reimbursement
of portions of their Enterprise Modification Fees. Enterprise Modification Fees collected by
additional Participants that exceed the Enterprise Modification Fees to be paid to Tyler shall be
remitted to Participants as reimbursement. Reimbursement amounts shall be in proportion to each
Participant’s share of the total Enterprise Modification fees paid by all Participants by module.

4.3. In accordance with the Master ILA, a Participant will not be responsible for any costs in excess of
those reflected in the 2014 Financial Plan unless those excess costs are approved by the
Participant’s governing body.

4.4. Costs as set forth in the 2014 Financial Plan are due from each Participant as specified therein.
Urban Counties will send invoices to the Participant in accordance with the payment schedule set
forth in the Financial Plan. The Participant shall pay no later than forty five (45) days after receipt of
each invoice.

4.5. In accordance with section 4.2. of the Master ILA, a Participant eligible for membership in Urban
Counties but not a member in good standing shall pay annually, as additional support costs, an
amount that in total for all Resources equals the amount the Participant would pay in dues if it were
a member of Urban Counties. Such additional amount, if applicable to any Participant, will be
included in Attachment A.

5. Participant Access to Information

5.1. Urban Counties shall make available to Participants the following information, which shall be posted
in its then-current form to the TechShare website or other electronically accessible location:

5.1.1. the Master ILA and this Addendum, including Attachments B, C, and D;

5.1.2. list of Participants;

5.1.3. contracts with vendors providing goods or services directly for a Participant;

5.1.4. records of expenditures; and

5.1.5. documents presented at Stakeholder Committee meetings and Oversight Committee
meetings which pertain to CIJS, and meeting minutes.

5.2. As information is replaced with more current versions, old information will be compiled in archive
folders and will remain available to Participants.

6. Miscellaneous

6.1. This Addendum may not be amended except in a written instrument specifically referring to this
Addendum and signed by the Parties hereto.

6.2. Each Party represents that it has, as of the date of the execution of this Addendum, obtained all
requisite approvals and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Addendum,
including the funds necessary to satisfy its obligations herein.

6.3. In the event any term or provision of this Implementation Agreement conflicts with any provision of
law, or is declared to be invalid or illegal for any reason, this Implementation Agreement will remain
in full force and effect and will be interpreted as though such invalid or illegal provision were not a
part of this Implementation Agreement. The remaining provisions will be construed to preserve the
intent and purpose of this Implementation Agreement and the parties will negotiate in good faith to
modify any invalidated provisions to preserve each party’s anticipated benefits.

T hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
, ec are Page 2 of 9, November 2013

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



7. Termination

7.1. A Participant may terminate its participation in this Addendum by providing written notice of
termination to Urban Counties at least ninety (90) days prior to termination.

7.2. A Participant is not entitled to reimbursement of any license fees or enterprise modification fees
previously paid by the Participant.

7.3. A Participant immediately loses the right to representation on the Stakeholder Committee upon
notice of termination to Urban Counties.

7.4. A Participant loses the right to reimbursement of shared costs upon termination.

7.5. A Participant shall have the right to continue to use those modules for which the Participant has
paid the applicable license fees in full prior to termination, but the Participant will not receive
maintenance and support.

8. Attachments Incorporated

8.1. The following attachments are incorporated in this Addendum as if fully set forth herein:

8.1.1. Attachment A: 2014 Financial Plan

8.1.2. Attachment B: End User License and Professional Services Agreement;

8.1.3. Attachment C: Software as a Service and Professional Services Agreement; and

8.1.4. Attachment D: Master Agreement.

This Addendum may be executed in multiple counterparts each of which will be deemed an original, but all
multiple counterparts together will constitute one and the same instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

h T hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
,

ec are Page 3 of 9, November 2013

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



COUNTY OF TRAVIS ATTEST:

By:

______________________________

By:

____

Title:

______________________________

Title:____

Date:

______________________________

Name and Address for Purposes of Notice:

T hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
,, ec are Page 4 of 9, October 2013

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



TEXAS CONFERENCE OF URBAN COUNTIES, INC.

BY:

___________________________

Title: Executive Director

Date: August 13, 2014

Name and Address for Purposes of Notice:

Donald Lee

500 W 3th Street

Austin, TX 78701

T hShar 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
, ec e Page 5 of 9, October 2013

—

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Attachment A: Financial Plan

The following schedule shows the estimated dates for payments to the Texas Conference of Urban
Counties for CIJS Software as a Service fees, Enterprise Modifications and Contract Administration
/Quality Assurance for Fiscal Year 2014. The schedules are updated at the beginning of each
Fiscal Year and presented to the Commissioners Court for approval.

Payments to Tyler Technologies for Implementation Services will continue to be made directly to
Tyler Technologies in accordance with the License Participation Agreement, the Implementation
Budget (included with the License Participation Agreement), and the Implementation Plan.

The term of this agreement is from January 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015.

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (111114-
3131115) Amount

Court Sytem Software

___________ __________

Annual Maintenance

____________ ____________

Software asaService Fee(411114-3131115)

___________ ___________

Total Fiscal Year 2014 $ 2083961

___J/TechShare

2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum
Page 6 of 9, October 2013

Est
Payment

Date

Data Conversion

____

Tim Davis - Integra

________

$ 182,250.00 AUq1 4

CUC Oversight

___________

Contract Administration (111/14 - 3/31/15) $ 14,011

$ 12,700 Aug-14

Aug-14

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Attachment B: End User License and Professional Services Agreement (Not
Applicable)

h T hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendumec are Page 7 of 9, October 2013

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Attachment C: Software as a Service and Professional Services Agreement

Ii T hSh 2014 CLJS Resource Sharing Addendum

________,

ec are Page 8 of 9 October 2013
‘I

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Attachment D: Master Agreement

11 r hSh 2014 CIJS Resource Sharing Addendum

________

Page 9 of 9, October 2013
If:

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001061 (PSI2O166LC) JP Odyssey Case Mmt. System

PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Lori Clyde DATE PREPARED:

700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 TEL. NO: (512) 854-9700 September 2, 2014AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185
ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
Tyler Technologies CONTRACT:

5101 Tennyson Parkway 1
Piano, TX 75024 March 6, 2012
Attn: Ashley Olinghouse
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: March 6. 2012 to March 31. 2015 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: March 6. 2012 to March 31. 2015

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $ 366.20700 Current Modified Amount $.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

This contract is hereby modified as follows per the attached Amendment:

1) For the Year 3 term, decrease the number of users from 157 to 135.

2) The annual SaaS fee for the Year 3 term will be $182,250.00.

Note to Vendor:

X Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I J DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

— / — / / LJDBALEGAL BUSINESS NAME: / /‘/
ORPORATIONBY: /%£‘-7

SIGNATURE 0 OTHER

BY:___________________________________
PRINT NAME .— DATE:

TITLE: 9 / /ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT ( /7
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:__________________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_________________________________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AMENDMENT

This amendment (“Amendment”) is made this

________

day of______________ 2014 by and between Tyler
Technologies, Inc. (“Tyler”) and Travis County, Texas (“Client”).

WHEREAS, Tyler and the Client are parties to a Software as a Service and Professional Services Agreement dated
March 6, 2012 (“Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Tyler and Client desire to amend the Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, Tyler and the Client agree as
follows:

1. Twenty-two (22) Users are hereby removed from the Year 3 term, months 15 —36 category effective for
months 24 through 36 of the Agreement.

2. The Annual SaaS Fee for the twelve month term adjusted hereby is amended to be $182,250.00 based on the
Users count of 135 as amended in paragraph 1 above.

3. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Agreement.

4. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Travis County, Texas

By: By:_____________________________

Name:____________________________________ Name:___________________________________

Title: VP At4S’ c-’J Title:____________________________

Date: /2- /4 Date:____________________________

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Sydney Ceder, (512)854-9882 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Authorize Casey Ping, STAR Flight Program 
Director, to sign Declaration of Eligibility for Contract Pricing for 
AmerisourceBergen and any other pharmaceutical manufacturer that 
may become available. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

On April 15, 2008, Commissioner’s Court approved Premier Purchasing 
Partners as the Group Purchasing Organization (GPO) for the County.  
As a result, declarations were required to establish the relationship 
between the GPO and pharmaceutical manufacturers to allow the 
County to access Premier’s contract prices for both brand name and 
generic pharmaceuticals. 

On April 22, 2008, Commissioner’s Court approved the request to 
authorize Diana C. Gonzalez, RPh, Director of the Travis County Jail 
System Pharmacy, to sign declarations on behalf of the Travis County 
Jail System Pharmacy. 

STAR Flight recommends approval of the Declaration of Eligibility form 
for AmerisourceBergen and requests authorization for Casey Ping, 
STAR Flight Program Director, to sign the Declaration of Eligibility for 
AmerisourceBergen and any other pharmaceutical manufacturers that 
may become available.  A copy of the signed forms will be forwarded for 
the Purchasing Office file. 

 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 7Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 1 of 4 
    

 
Form will not be processed unless all questions are completed 
 
 
Name of BDM or Account Manager:  _________________ 
 
Phone of BMD or Account Manager: ___________________________ 

Office Use Only 

 
Servicing Distributions Center(s) _____________________________________________________ 

 
This questionnaire is to be completed by the Owner and Business Development Manager during an on-site visit 
 
1. Pharmacy Name:             

a. ABC Account number (Legacy)_________________________________________________ 
b. Pharmacy’s dba (doing business as), if any ______________________________  
c. Has the pharmacy ever operated under a different name? 

Yes____ No____   If yes, provide the Name: 
_______________________________________________________________ 

d. Will ABC be this customer’s primary wholesaler? Yes____  No ____ 
e. Has this customer signed a Prime Vendor agreement?   Yes___    No___  
f. Does this customer have a PVA or equivalent with any other wholesaler?  

Yes___    No___ If yes, name __________________________________ 
 

2. Pharmacy Address:  Dell Childrens Medical Center / STAR Flight Quarters______ 
a. Street: 4900 Mueller Blvd 
b. City___Austin_________________________ 
c. State__TX____ 
d. Zip____78723____ 

 
3. Pharmacy Phone Number:  ____________________   Fax Number: ___________________  
 
4. Pharmacy Email Address:  ___________________________  
 
5. Check one: 

  Start-up business. Other suppliers ____________________________________ 
 Existing business adding or changing suppliers. ______________________________ 

Estimated monthly dollar volume _________________________ 
Identify any secondary suppliers customer intends to 
utilize.___________________________________________________________ 
Identify prior suppliers  __________________________________________________________ 
Has a supplier ever suspended or ceased controlled substance sales to the pharmacy? ____Yes ____No                                 
If yes, why______________________________________________________________________ 

  Existing ABC Customer. Account # _________________________________________ 
 

6. Name of pharmacist –in –charge (PIC) as it appears on the license 
_____________________________________________________ 

 
7. PIC’s state license number:  ____________________________________________________ 
 
8. Has the PIC ever been sanctioned/disciplined in any state(s) where they are or have been licensed? 

Yes____ No____    If Yes, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 2 of 4 
    

9. Is this pharmacy affiliated with any other pharmacy? 
Yes____ No____   If yes, provide the following: 
 
Name: _________________________________________________________  
Address: _______________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: _____________________Fax Number:______________________ 
 
Note: If there are additional affiliates please attach an additional sheet with the information 

 
10. Ownership type: Check one 

a. Sole Proprietor ____ Corporation_____ Partnership_____ Other____________(describe) 
b. If corporation, provide name of CEO_____________________________________ 

 
11. Owner(s) name:  __________________________________________________ 
 
12. Owner State of Residence:  ________________________________________________  
 
13. Owner Phone Number:  ___________________   Fax Number:  ___________________  
 
14. Owner Email Address:  ___________________________  
 
15. Number of years owner has operated pharmacy ________________________  
 
16. Is the Owner a licensed pharmacist? 

Yes____ No____   
 
17. Pharmacy DEA registration #:      MT2632253      
 
18. State BOP license #__________________________    

 
19. What is the pharmacy’s Self-Certification number which is required to sell pseudoephedrine products? 

__________________________________ (refer to: http://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/meth/index.html#sales)  
 
20. Has the Pharmacy ever had a DEA registration or State license/registration suspended or revoked? Yes____No_X__    

If so, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

21. Has the Owner, family member, or any employee of the pharmacy ever had a DEA registration or State 
license/registration suspended or revoked?  
Yes____ No__X__    If so, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
22. Does the pharmacy have any other licensure/registration (wholesale, repackager, etc…)?   

Yes____ No____   If so, provide copies. 
 

23. Check the following manners of receiving business and provide what percentage of the total business it comprises: 
 
Walk-In      Yes____ No____     ______% 
Phone     Yes____ No____     ______% 
Fax    Yes____ No____     ______%  
Internet/Mail Order/E-Scribe Yes____ No____     ______% 

 
24. Which state(s) does the pharmacy ship into (if any)?          

            
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

http://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/meth/index.html#sales


`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 3 of 4 
    

25. Is the pharmacy licensed for sales in all states it distributes to?    
Yes____ No____ 

 
26. Are all prescriptions written by physicians located in the state in which the patient resides? 

Yes____ No____  
 

27. Does the pharmacy have written policies and procedures regarding the filling of prescriptions? 
_____ Yes _____ No   If yes, information may be required to be produced upon request 
             a. How many prescriptions are filled daily____________; monthly__________? 

b. Percentage of prescriptions that are controlled substances__________% 
c. Verification process ______________________________________________________________ 
    ______________________________________________________________________________ 
d. Does the pharmacy use the State Rx monitoring program? ____Yes  ____No ____ N/A 
e. Does the pharmacy verify the physician’s state license and/or DEA registration? ___ Yes ___ No 
f.  Does the pharmacy engage in discussions with prescribing physicians? ___ Yes ____ No If yes, how 
    documented? ___________________________________________________________________ 
g. What is the pharmacy’s procedure for reporting fraudulent Rx’s? 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

28. Check the following types of products and provide the approximate percentage of products you expect to purchase 
from AmerisourceBergen? 

 
HBA/OTC   Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases 
Non-Controlled Rx  Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases  
Controlled Substances Yes__X__ No___100_____% of total purchases  
Listed Chemicals  Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases 

 
29. Anticipated or actual usage of certain controlled substances: 
 

Item Monthly Usage 
Values in # of tabs 

Average Tablets per 
Prescription 

Average Days Supply 
per Prescription 

Oxycodone Products    
Oxycodone 30 mg IR    
Hydrocodone    
Alprazolam    
Carisoprodol    

 
List top 5 prescribing physicians ranked by volume of prescriptions for OX or HY, whichever is greater: 

 
Name DEA Registration # Prescriptions Monthly % to overall 

prescription volume 

    
    
    
    
    
 
30. Does the pharmacy have a web site?   

Yes____ No____ If yes, provide web address(es):  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Note: If no, you are required to notify us immediately upon establishing a web site.   

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 4 of 4 
    

31. Will the pharmacy download and fill prescriptions on a per prescription fee basis from a website for dispensing? 
 
Yes____ No____  If yes, provide web address(es): 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
32. Check the following types of payments the pharmacy receives for products and provide the approximate percentage 

of total payments:  
 

Private Insurance  Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue 
Medicare/Medicaid  Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue 
Cash   Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue  
Other   Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue  

 
If other, provide details ____________________________________________________  
 

33. Attach and date photographs of pharmacy building (2 of inside, including counter area & 2 of outside-front and back of 
pharmacy). 

 
OTHER COMMENTS/OBSERVATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, as the Owner or [authorized representative or officer of the Owner], declare that I have completed this Retail Pharmacy 
Questionnaire and to the best of my knowledge and belief the information provided is true, correct and complete. 
 
OWNER: 
Name of Entity/Person 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: 
______________________________________ 
Title: 
______________________________________ 
Date: 
 
I, as the authorized AmerisourceBergen representative, declare that I have reviewed this Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 
with the owner or [authorized representative or officer of Owner] and to the best of my knowledge and belief the 
information provided is true, correct and complete.  I therefore recommend opening this account. 
 
AMERISOURCEBERGEN ASSOCIATE:     
Signature _    
                           
 _                             
Full Name (Print)                                
___________________________________ 
Title  
______________________________________ 
Cell Phone Number          

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 1 of 4 
    

 
Form will not be processed unless all questions are completed 
 
 
Name of BDM or Account Manager:  _________________ 
 
Phone of BMD or Account Manager: ___________________________ 

Office Use Only 

 
Servicing Distributions Center(s) _____________________________________________________ 

 
This questionnaire is to be completed by the Owner and Business Development Manager during an on-site visit 
 
1. Pharmacy Name:             

a. ABC Account number (Legacy)_________________________________________________ 
b. Pharmacy’s dba (doing business as), if any ______________________________  
c. Has the pharmacy ever operated under a different name? 

Yes____ No____   If yes, provide the Name: 
_______________________________________________________________ 

d. Will ABC be this customer’s primary wholesaler? Yes____  No ____ 
e. Has this customer signed a Prime Vendor agreement?   Yes___    No___  
f. Does this customer have a PVA or equivalent with any other wholesaler?  

Yes___    No___ If yes, name __________________________________ 
 

2. Pharmacy Address:  __Travis County STAR Flight Quarters / UMCB  
a. Street: 601 E 15th. St. 
b. City___Austin_________________________ 
c. State___TX___ 
d. Zip___78701_____ 

 
3. Pharmacy Phone Number:  ____________________   Fax Number: ___________________  
 
4. Pharmacy Email Address:  ___________________________  
 
5. Check one: 

  Start-up business. Other suppliers ____________________________________ 
 Existing business adding or changing suppliers. ______________________________ 

Estimated monthly dollar volume _________________________ 
Identify any secondary suppliers customer intends to 
utilize.___________________________________________________________ 
Identify prior suppliers  __________________________________________________________ 
Has a supplier ever suspended or ceased controlled substance sales to the pharmacy? ____Yes ____No                                 
If yes, why______________________________________________________________________ 

  Existing ABC Customer. Account # _________________________________________ 
 

6. Name of pharmacist –in –charge (PIC) as it appears on the license 
_____________________________________________________ 

 
7. PIC’s state license number:  ____________________________________________________ 
 
8. Has the PIC ever been sanctioned/disciplined in any state(s) where they are or have been licensed? 

Yes____ No____    If Yes, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 2 of 4 
    

9. Is this pharmacy affiliated with any other pharmacy? 
Yes____ No____   If yes, provide the following: 
 
Name: _________________________________________________________  
Address: _______________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: _____________________Fax Number:______________________ 
 
Note: If there are additional affiliates please attach an additional sheet with the information 

 
10. Ownership type: Check one 

a. Sole Proprietor ____ Corporation_____ Partnership_____ Other____________(describe) 
b. If corporation, provide name of CEO_____________________________________ 

 
11. Owner(s) name:  __________________________________________________ 
 
12. Owner State of Residence:  ________________________________________________  
 
13. Owner Phone Number:  ___________________   Fax Number:  ___________________  
 
14. Owner Email Address:  ___________________________  
 
15. Number of years owner has operated pharmacy ________________________  
 
16. Is the Owner a licensed pharmacist? 

Yes____ No____   
 
17. Pharmacy DEA registration #:      MT2203088      
 
18. State BOP license #__________________________    

 
19. What is the pharmacy’s Self-Certification number which is required to sell pseudoephedrine products? 

__________________________________ (refer to: http://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/meth/index.html#sales)  
 
20. Has the Pharmacy ever had a DEA registration or State license/registration suspended or revoked? Yes____No_X__    

If so, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

21. Has the Owner, family member, or any employee of the pharmacy ever had a DEA registration or State 
license/registration suspended or revoked?  
Yes____ No__X__    If so, give details (when, why, etc.) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
22. Does the pharmacy have any other licensure/registration (wholesale, repackager, etc…)?   

Yes____ No____   If so, provide copies. 
 

23. Check the following manners of receiving business and provide what percentage of the total business it comprises: 
 
Walk-In      Yes____ No____     ______% 
Phone     Yes____ No____     ______% 
Fax    Yes____ No____     ______%  
Internet/Mail Order/E-Scribe Yes____ No____     ______% 

 
24. Which state(s) does the pharmacy ship into (if any)?          

            
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

http://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/meth/index.html#sales


`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 3 of 4 
    

25. Is the pharmacy licensed for sales in all states it distributes to?    
Yes____ No____ 

 
26. Are all prescriptions written by physicians located in the state in which the patient resides? 

Yes____ No____  
 

27. Does the pharmacy have written policies and procedures regarding the filling of prescriptions? 
_____ Yes _____ No   If yes, information may be required to be produced upon request 
             a. How many prescriptions are filled daily____________; monthly__________? 

b. Percentage of prescriptions that are controlled substances__________% 
c. Verification process ______________________________________________________________ 
    ______________________________________________________________________________ 
d. Does the pharmacy use the State Rx monitoring program? ____Yes  ____No ____ N/A 
e. Does the pharmacy verify the physician’s state license and/or DEA registration? ___ Yes ___ No 
f.  Does the pharmacy engage in discussions with prescribing physicians? ___ Yes ____ No If yes, how 
    documented? ___________________________________________________________________ 
g. What is the pharmacy’s procedure for reporting fraudulent Rx’s? 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

28. Check the following types of products and provide the approximate percentage of products you expect to purchase 
from AmerisourceBergen? 

 
HBA/OTC   Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases 
Non-Controlled Rx  Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases  
Controlled Substances Yes__X__ No___100_____% of total purchases  
Listed Chemicals  Yes____ No____ _______% of total purchases 

 
29. Anticipated or actual usage of certain controlled substances: 
 

Item Monthly Usage 
Values in # of tabs 

Average Tablets per 
Prescription 

Average Days Supply 
per Prescription 

Oxycodone Products    
Oxycodone 30 mg IR    
Hydrocodone    
Alprazolam    
Carisoprodol    

 
List top 5 prescribing physicians ranked by volume of prescriptions for OX or HY, whichever is greater: 

 
Name DEA Registration # Prescriptions Monthly % to overall 

prescription volume 

    
    
    
    
    
 
30. Does the pharmacy have a web site?   

Yes____ No____ If yes, provide web address(es):  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Note: If no, you are required to notify us immediately upon establishing a web site.   

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



`  

 
Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 

    

ABC Form CSRA-590, Aug  13 Previous Edition is Obsolete Page 4 of 4 
    

31. Will the pharmacy download and fill prescriptions on a per prescription fee basis from a website for dispensing? 
 
Yes____ No____  If yes, provide web address(es): 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
32. Check the following types of payments the pharmacy receives for products and provide the approximate percentage 

of total payments:  
 

Private Insurance  Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue 
Medicare/Medicaid  Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue 
Cash   Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue  
Other   Yes____ No____ _______% of revenue  

 
If other, provide details ____________________________________________________  
 

33. Attach and date photographs of pharmacy building (2 of inside, including counter area & 2 of outside-front and back of 
pharmacy). 

 
OTHER COMMENTS/OBSERVATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, as the Owner or [authorized representative or officer of the Owner], declare that I have completed this Retail Pharmacy 
Questionnaire and to the best of my knowledge and belief the information provided is true, correct and complete. 
 
OWNER: 
Name of Entity/Person 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: 
______________________________________ 
Title: 
______________________________________ 
Date: 
 
I, as the authorized AmerisourceBergen representative, declare that I have reviewed this Retail Pharmacy Questionnaire 
with the owner or [authorized representative or officer of Owner] and to the best of my knowledge and belief the 
information provided is true, correct and complete.  I therefore recommend opening this account. 
 
AMERISOURCEBERGEN ASSOCIATE:     
Signature _    
                           
 _                             
Full Name (Print)                                
___________________________________ 
Title  
______________________________________ 
Cell Phone Number          

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Other Names Under Which You Have Operated in the Last Year

Parent Corporation (if applicable)

D.E.A.# HIN#

Primary GPO AmerisourceBergen Division

Secondary GPO(s) Bed Count (if applicable)

Your Name Title

Signature Date

AmerisourceBergen Corporation
Acct Mgr Signature Date

Premier

Fax:

MT2632253

Fax:

Zip: 78767-3101 Zip: 78723-0000

Telephone: Telephone:

Address: P.O. Box 1748 Address: 4900 Mueller Blvd

City, State: Austin, Texas City, State: Austin, TX

Unless otherwise permitted by law, signature of this declaration constitutes a representation by you and your company that 

product received at contract pricing will be used only for its own use as defined in

Abbott Laboratories v. Portland Retail Druggist Ass'n, 425 U.S. 1 (1976) and that if you are also operating as a retail pharmacy 

you will maintain a separate inventory for your retail business .  Any other use of these products will constitute cause for 

immediate termination of this account.

one facility, please list all facilities on an attachment.

Bill To (Legal Entity) Ship To:

Facility Name: Travis County Facility Name: Starflight Crew Quarters DCMC

Please list the name, address, DEA and HIN number of the facility.  List the Primary Group Purchasing Organization along with any 
secondary Group Purchasing Organizations if applicable.  If there is more than 

If you have multiple affiliations, this document designates the Primary or Preferred Group Purchasing Organization.  Multiple Primary 

affiliations will result in no incentives, tiers or fees being recognized.

This document must be signed within 30 days of its receipt by you or the initial start of service, whichever is earlier, in order to maintain 
Primary Group Purchasing contracts.  Sales at contract pricing on an account will not be
permitted without a signed declaration document.

AmerisourceBergen Declaration of Eligibility for Contract Pricing

This document is a declaration of customer eligibility for contract pricing and similar items.  This document will supersede all other signed 
documents pertaining to AmerisourceBergen’s recognition of your Group Purchasing
Organization affiliation or of any other bases establishing eligibility for contract pricing.

Contract pricing discrepancies regarding eligibility on group or individual contracts will be your responsibility to resolve.  In the event a 
manufacturer disputes contract pricing, you will be credited with the amount paid and
re-billed by AmerisourceBergen at the non-contract price in effect at the time the product was shipped to you.

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Other Names Under Which You Have Operated in the Last Year

Parent Corporation (if applicable)

D.E.A.# HIN#

Primary GPO AmerisourceBergen Division

Secondary GPO(s) Bed Count (if applicable)

Your Name Title

Signature Date

AmerisourceBergen Corporation
Acct Mgr Signature Date

Premier

Fax:

MT2203088

Fax:

Zip: 78767-3101 Zip: 78701-0000

Telephone: Telephone: 512-478-1311

Address: P.O. Box 1748 Address: 601 E. 15th St.

City, State: Austin, Texas City, State: Austin, TX

Unless otherwise permitted by law, signature of this declaration constitutes a representation by you and your company that 

product received at contract pricing will be used only for its own use as defined in

Abbott Laboratories v. Portland Retail Druggist Ass'n, 425 U.S. 1 (1976) and that if you are also operating as a retail pharmacy 

you will maintain a separate inventory for your retail business .  Any other use of these products will constitute cause for 

immediate termination of this account.

one facility, please list all facilities on an attachment.

Bill To (Legal Entity) Ship To:

Facility Name: Travis County Facility Name: Starflight Quarters - UMCB

Please list the name, address, DEA and HIN number of the facility.  List the Primary Group Purchasing Organization along with any 
secondary Group Purchasing Organizations if applicable.  If there is more than 

If you have multiple affiliations, this document designates the Primary or Preferred Group Purchasing Organization.  Multiple Primary 

affiliations will result in no incentives, tiers or fees being recognized.

This document must be signed within 30 days of its receipt by you or the initial start of service, whichever is earlier, in order to maintain 
Primary Group Purchasing contracts.  Sales at contract pricing on an account will not be
permitted without a signed declaration document.

AmerisourceBergen Declaration of Eligibility for Contract Pricing

This document is a declaration of customer eligibility for contract pricing and similar items.  This document will supersede all other signed 
documents pertaining to AmerisourceBergen’s recognition of your Group Purchasing
Organization affiliation or of any other bases establishing eligibility for contract pricing.

Contract pricing discrepancies regarding eligibility on group or individual contracts will be your responsibility to resolve.  In the event a 
manufacturer disputes contract pricing, you will be credited with the amount paid and
re-billed by AmerisourceBergen at the non-contract price in effect at the time the product was shipped to you.

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Management of 
Assigned Counsel, with Capital Area Private Defender Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 In June 2014, Travis County received a grant award from the Texas 
Indigent Defense Commission in the amount of $715,516 to create a 
Managed Assigned Counsel office.  During the preceding two (2) years, 
the Travis County Criminal Judges, the Austin Bar, and the Austin 
Criminal Defense Lawyers’ Association collaborated to create and 
implement a Managed Assigned Counsel program to oversee indigent 
defense representation. 

 On August 26, 2014 the Commissioners Court appointed the non-profit 
organization Capital Area Private Defender Services to implement and 
administer this program.  Capital Area Private Defender Services will be 
responsible for implementing the policies and procedures in the Travis 
County Fair Defense Plan, as well as to perform services as the 
Program Administrator in compliance with the Travis County Fair 
Defense Plan.  

 The Managed Assigned Counsel program will commence January 1, 
2015, and Travis County shall not be obligated to pay in excess of the 
budgeted amount, $769,894 for expenditures during the term of the 
contract, between October 1, 2014 and September 30, 2015. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 8Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Award Amount: $769,894.00  NTE   
Contract Type: Professional Services   
Contract Period: Through September 30, 2015. 
  

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:   Responses Received:   
HUB Information:   % HUB Subcontractor:   

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:  N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: TBD 
  Fund Center(s): TBD 
  Comments: Grant Number - TBD 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 1 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
FOR MANAGEMENT OF ASSIGNED COUNSEL 

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND  
CAPITAL AREA PRIVATE DEFENDER SERVICES  

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE ............................................................................................................................. 2 
1.0  DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................................................................... 3 
2.0  TERM ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 
3.0  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................................................................................... 4 
4.0  CONTRACTOR WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS ..................................................................... 7 
5.0  COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT ............................................................................................. 9 
6.0  RECORDS AND AUDITS ........................................................................................................................ 10 
7.0  RISK ALLOCATION  ............................................................................................................................... 12 
8.0  MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS ..................................................................................................... 16 
9.0  DISPUTE RESOLUTION ......................................................................................................................... 17 
10.0  TERMINATION ................................................................................................................................... 18 
11.0  NOTICE ................................................................................................................................... 19 
12.0  GENERAL PROVISIONS ....................................................................................................................... 20 
13.0  SIGNATURES ................................................................................................................................... 23 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

ATTACHMENT A – DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MEASURES ............................................ 25 
EXHIBIT 1 – CAPITAL AREA PRIVATE DEFENDER SERVICES BUDGET, OBJECTIVES, AND 

EVALUATION MEASURES .......................................................................................... 32 
EXHIBIT 2 – CONTRACTOR’S WRITTEN REPORT ................................................................................ ? 
EXHIBIT 3 – M.O.U. BETWEEN ACDLA, ABA, AND JUDICIARY ...................................................... ? 
EXHIBIT 4 – TRAVIS COUNTY FAIR DEFENSE PLAN .......................................................................... ? 
EXHIBIT 5 – REPORTING TABLES ................................................................................................... 38 

ATTACHMENT B – REIMBURSEMENT REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITS ............................................................ 40 
EXHIBIT 1 – TRAVIS COUNTY FINANCIAL FORMS .......................................................................... 47 

ATTACHMENT C – CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT ................................................................... 49 
ATTACHMENT D – ETHICS AFFIDAVIT ....................................................................................................... 50 

EXHIBIT 1 – LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS ........................................................................ 51 
 
 
 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

walkerj
Draft



 2 
 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
FOR MANAGEMENT OF ASSIGNED COUNSEL 

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND  
CAPITAL AREA PRIVATE DEFENDER SERVICES 

 
 This Contract is made by the following parties: Travis County, Texas (“County”) and Capital 
Area Private Defender Services (“Contractor”). 
 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
 
The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution guarantees the following rights to the accused 
in a criminal trial:  

  
In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, 
…  and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defense. 

 
The United States Supreme Court held in Gideon v. Wainwright, 372 U.S. 335 (1963) that a criminal 
defendant who cannot afford a lawyer must be appointed one to ensure a fair trial.  This constitutional 
requirement preserves the fundamental principles of liberty and justice.  In Strickland v. Washington, 
466 U.S. 668 (1984), the Supreme Court elaborated on indigent defense, holding that it is not enough 
that counsel merely be present, but rather, counsel must be effective.  The Strickland Court held that in 
order to secure the Sixth Amendment’s right to assistance of counsel, defense counsel’s skill and 
knowledge must be evaluated to determine that a defendant has been competently represented. 
  
The State of Texas passed the Fair Defense Act in 2001, which assists local governments in affording 
counsel for indigent defendants.  At the same time, Texas created what is now known as the Texas 
Indigent Defense Commission, which administers statewide appropriations and policies.  The Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure lists several different manners and means of providing effective counsel to 
indigent defendants.    
  
The execution of this Contract between County and Contractor creates a Managed Assigned Counsel 
Program as described in Article 26.047 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.  Contractor shall act 
as the Judge’s designee, as authorized under Article 26.04 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, to 
appoint qualified counsel to indigent defendants accused of a crime in Travis County.  This Agreement 
is intended to further justice and fairness in the criminal justice system in Travis County and satisfy the 
constitutional requirements mandated by the Sixth Amendment.   
 
 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 3 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1.0 DEFINITIONS 
 
In this Contract: 
 

1.1 “Appointment List” means a list of attorneys licensed to practice in Texas, who have the 
qualifications and experience detailed in the Travis County Fair Defense Plan and who 
have applied for and been granted inclusion on the list of attorneys who may be appointed 
to represent Clients.  

1.2 “Case” means the representation of one defendant in one accusatory pleading in the 
prosecution of a misdemeanor or a felony, potentially including multiple charges and in 
the appeal of the judgment in any such matter.  If a single defendant is accused in more 
than one accusatory pleading, each separate pleading constitutes a separate Case.  Matters 
involving trial competency pursuant to Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Section 46B are 
not separate Cases.  Any proceeding instituted after sentence and requiring appointment of 
an attorney shall be treated as an additional Case.       

1.3  “Client” means an adult criminal defendant who has been determined to meet financial 
eligibility requirements and appointed an attorney on the Appointment List to represent 
him or her in a Case.    

1.4 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court. 
1.5 “Contract” means the entire agreement between County and Contractor as described in 

Section 12.4, including all attachments and exhibits listed in that section.  
1.6 “County Auditor” means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 
1.7 “Day” means calendar day. 
1.8 “Judge” means any one or all of the judges presiding over the criminal County-Courts-at-

Law and the District Courts located in Travis County. 
1.9 “Notice” means a written statement delivered in compliance with section 11.0. 
1.10 “Program” means the Managed Assigned Counsel program described in Article 26.047 of 

the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and includes the office of Contractor from which 
Contractor provides the Services described in this portion of the Contract and in 
Attachment A including its exhibits.  

1.11 “Project Manager” means the Director of Criminal Court Administration or her designee. 
1.12 “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent or her designee. 
1.13 “Services” mean the activities, obligations, and deliverables described in Section 3, 

Contractor Responsibilities and in the Description of Services in Attachment A, 
Description of Services. 

1.14 “TIDC” means the Texas Indigent Defense Commission. 
1.15 “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for days that County has 

designated as holidays. 
 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 4 
 

 
2.0 TERM 

 
2.1 Initial Term.  This Contract commences on October 1, 2014, and continues until 

September 30, 2015, unless sooner terminated by either party as provided herein. 
 
2.2 Renewal Term(s).  Subject to continued funding by the TIDC and Commissioners Court, 

County has the option to renew this Contract on October 1 of each year for four 
additional one year terms unless sooner terminated as provided herein.  During the fifth 
year, County will evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the Program and determine 
whether continuation of the Program under this Contract or another arrangement or at all 
is appropriate and warranted. 

 
 
3.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
3.1 Implementation of Policies and Procedures.  Contractor shall implement the policies and 

procedures in the Travis County Fair Defense Plan, attached as Exhibit 4 to this Contract, 
and perform all Services as the Program Administrator under this Contract in compliance 
with the Travis County Fair Defense Plan.  County acknowledges that all attorneys 
appointed prior to January 1, 2015, the commencement date of the Program, are not 
subject to the terms of this Contract and the Contractor is not required to provide Services 
for these attorneys. 
 

3.2 Compliance with Grant Application and Contract.  Contractor shall perform all services 
under this Contract in a manner that complies with the County’s grant application for 
Managed Assigned Counsel Program and TIDC’s Statement of Grant Award to Travis 
County for fiscal year 2015 as modified during any extension of this grant. The 
provisions particularly applicable to Contractor are the budget including positions and 
amounts, and objectives and evaluation factors stated in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A.  
These provisions must be followed during this Contract year unless this Contract is 
amended.  
 

3.3 Description of Services.  Contractor shall select qualified licensed attorneys in 
compliance with the Travis County Fair Defense Plan for placement on the Appointment 
List to provide legal representation for Clients in a timely manner.  Contractor shall 
administer the Program by maintaining an Appointment List and developing a systematic 
plan for obtaining or developing better trained and better qualified attorneys to represent 
Clients.  Contractor shall provide oversight, supervision, and mentoring to those attorneys 
on the List.  Contractor shall review the attorneys’ work on a regular basis, and be 
responsible for removing attorneys from the Appointment List when Contractor 
determines that an attorney is no longer able to provide competent representation 
pursuant to the Travis County Fair Defense Plan.  Contractor also makes the preliminary 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 5 
 

determination of when investigators or experts are necessary for the proper presentation 
of a criminal defendant’s Case, and shall begin the process to select such professionals.  
Contractor’s Services are outlined in further detail in Attachment A. 

 
3.4 Written Report.  Contractor has produced a line-item budget for the Program, including 

salaries and benefits, which is based on the TIDC Grant Award and attached to this 
Contract as Exhibit 1 to Attachment A. Contractor will produce a written report by 
October 15, 2014, which will be attached to this Contract as Exhibit 2 to Attachment A 
and outline its plan of operation, consistent with Section 26.047(c) of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure, and including, at least: 

 
3.4.1 Copy of Exhibit 1 which is a line-item budget for the Program, including salaries 

and benefits; 
3.4.2 A job description of each personnel position, including the Program’s executive 

director; 
3.4.3 The maximum allowable appointed caseload for any attorney appointed by the 

Program; 
3.4.4 Provisions for training personnel and attorneys on the Appointment List; 
3.4.5 A description of anticipated overhead costs for the Program; 
3.4.6 A policy regarding licensed investigators and expert witnesses, including when 

and how provided, types provided, limits of reimbursement provided and any 
other relevant consideration; 

3.4.7 A policy ensuring that appointments are reasonably and impartially allocated 
among qualified attorneys on the Appointment List and describing the methods of 
accomplishing this;  

3.4.8 A policy to ensure that appointed attorneys are not assigned cases with conflicts 
of interest, or the appearance of conflicts unless these have been voluntarily 
waived with full understanding by all affected Clients; and 

3.4.9 A declaration providing that no attorney accepting appointments for any case 
under the program is eligible to serve as a voting member of any board or 
committee that provides day-to-day oversight, policy creation, or determines or 
influences the appointment processes of Contractor.   

 
The written report shall be submitted for approval by Commissioners Court and, when 
approved, attached to this Contract as Exhibit 2 to Attachment A.    

 
3.5 Policies and Procedures Manual.  Contractor shall prepare and submit a Policies and 

Procedure manual for office operation to the Project Manager no later than January 10, 
2015.  If the manual is amended during the year, the amended version must be submitted 
to the Project Manager no later than October 30, 2015. 
 

3.6 Professional Qualifications.  At all times during the Contract, Contractor shall ensure that 
its staff maintain in good standing their professional licenses and accreditations 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 6 
 

applicable to Services.  Contractor shall ensure that its staff perform all acts reasonably 
necessary to maintain and improve their professional competence and training.  
Contractor shall notify County within two (2) Work Days if any adverse action related to 
the professional license and accreditations of any of its staff occurs. 
 

3.7 Full-Time Employment.  The following employees of Contractor shall be full-time 
positions: Executive Director, First Assistant, Second Assistant, and Investigator.  
Contractor shall require these employees not to work professionally outside of the 
Services provided under this Contract.  For purposes of correlation with the grant 
contract, the following position titles shall be equivalent: 

 
Attorney – Director    Executive Director 
Attorney – Assistant Director  First Assistant  
Supervising Attorney   Second Assistant 
 
County recognizes that one or more of these employees may have ongoing cases resulting 
from a private law practice for which it is not practicable to seek substitution of counsel 
and which cannot be completed within the time between an offer of employment and 
their first day of work for Contractor.  To facilitate Contractor’s ability to select the most 
qualified and appropriate applicant for each position, County shall not consider it a 
breach of this Contract if Contractor requires selected applicants to dispose of as many of 
the obligations of their private practice as practicable before their first day of work and 
allows these new employees up to six months to complete any matters in which 
substitution of counsel is not practicable.  However, Contractor and these employees 
must certify the actual hours of work that were devoted to the employees’ responsibilities 
to Contractor and the Program.  Contractor acknowledges that it may only request 
reimbursement for hours spent on work related to the Program and for Contractor and 
that for purposes of determining the pro-rata portion of the salary which is due to an 
employee, full time employment is calculated as forty hours per Fair Labor Standards Act 
work week.  

 
3.8 Right to Contractual Material.  All work products created or produced by Contractor as a 

result of Services, including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended 
documentation to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related material are the 
property of County at the time of creation.  Any intellectual property rights granted to 
County survive the termination of this Contract and endure for the useful life of the 
contractual material and other intellectual property rights provided. 

 
3.9 Rights to Contractor’s Work Products.  Contractor assigns to County any and all rights, 

title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights, trade secrets and proprietary 
rights to the work products developed or prepared for County under this Contract.  The 
work products exclude all third party works and products whether or not included or 
embedded in the Contractor’s work products.  Contractor shall give County reasonable 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 7 
 

assistance, at County’s expense, to perfect this assignment of these rights, title and 
interest.  In addition, Contractor retains the right to use its knowledge, experience, and 
know-how, including processes, ideas, concepts and techniques developed in the course 
of performing the Services. 

 
3.10 Standard of Care.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, Contractor shall 

perform all Services using at least the standard of care that a reasonably prudent person 
providing the same or similar services would use in similar circumstances.  Contractor 
shall perform the Services and other obligations in this Contract in a good and 
workmanlike manner.  This Contract shall not be interpreted to relieve Contractor of this 
duty. 

 
3.11 Ethical Standards.  Contractor shall perform the Services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable standards of professional conduct and 
ethics and Contractor’s best professional judgment. 

 
3.12 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance.  In performing the Services, Contractor shall not 

discriminate against any applicant, employee, attorney, Client, or other person on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or disability and shall provide 
reasonable accommodations for disabilities as required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act as amended.   

 
3.13 Legal Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, 

regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of all Services. 
 
3.14 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.  If required, Contractor shall complete, file and update 

a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code.  Contractor acknowledges that the law requires County to provide 
access to this questionnaire on the official Travis County website.  

 
3.15 Certification Regarding Debarment.  Contractor shall complete and update a Certification 

Regarding Debarment on the form in Attachment C whenever there is a change in status. 
 
 
4.0 CONTRACTOR WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
4.1 AUTHORITY TO CHANGE CONTRACT.  CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO OFFICER, 

AGENT, EMPLOYEE, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE 

TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS OR EXHIBITS TO IT, TO APPROVE 

ASSIGNMENT OF ANY PART OF IT, OR TO WAIVE ANY PROVISION OF IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY 

GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 8 
 

4.2 Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.  Contractor represents that all applicable copyrights, 
patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which exist on 
materials used in this Contract have been adhered to, and warrants that County is not 
liable for any infringement of those rights. 

 
4.3 Payment of Property Taxes.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not currently 

delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector. 
 
4.4 Federal Funds.  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and will not pay, and no 

one else has paid and will not pay on behalf of Contractor, any federally appropriated 
funds to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of 
any agency, a member of Congress, any officer or employee of Congress, or any 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with awarding of any federal contract, 
the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
4.5 Independent Contractor.  The provisions of this Contract are not intended to create and 

shall not be deemed or interpreted to create any relationship between the parties other 
than that of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of this 
Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is an independent contractor, 
operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities 
applicable to it as an independent contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that it and its 
employees are not employees of County, and Contractor and its employees do not gain 
any rights against County pursuant to the County personnel policies and procedures.  This 
Contract does not confer any benefits on any third parties. 

 
4.6 No Agency Relationship.  Contractor acknowledges that it does not have the authority to 

enter into any contract in the name of County or otherwise bind County in any way 
without the express written consent of County.  County does not have the authority to 
enter into any contract in the name of Contractor or otherwise bind Contractor in any way 
without the express written consent of Contractor. 

 
4.7 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys.  Pursuant to TIDC’s grant funding 

requirements, County shall purchase furniture and equipment needed for the operation of 
the Program and County shall maintain ownership of all property purchased with grant 
funds.  Contractor acknowledges that all furniture, equipment, supplies and other tangible 
property purchased with funds provided by County under this Contract are and remain 
the property of County while in the temporary possession of Contractor.  At the end of 
this Contract, Contractor shall return County property of any kind, including all keys, 
access cards and other means of access to County buildings and other property that have 
been provided to it or its staff.  Contractor shall not permit its staff to take or retain any 
County property or any property of County employees. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 9 
 

 
 

5.0 COMPENSATION, INVOICING AND PAYMENT 
 

5.1 Taxpayer Identification Number.  Contractor shall provide County with an Internal 
Revenue Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is 
completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations before 
any Contract funds are payable. 

 
5.2 Reimbursement Requests.  In consideration of Contractor’s satisfactory performance of 

the Services under this Contract, County shall reimburse Contractor for expenses incurred 
in compliance with the Budget in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A as amended and approved 
by County in accordance with the Reimbursement Requirements and Limits in 
Attachment B.  Contractor must request reimbursement from County in compliance with 
Attachment B.  Each reimbursement request submitted by Contractor shall be signed by 
Contractor.    

 
5.3 Unauthorized Requests.  County is not liable for any of the following: 

5.3.1 Costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or after the 
Contract term, 

5.3.2 Expenses not billed to County within the applicable time limits in this 
Contract,  

5.3.3 Any costs for activities not included as Services,  
5.3.4 Costs not approved by the Regional Administrative Judge, the Oversight 

Committee or the Commissioners Court, or 
5.3.5 Any costs not allowed under Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS) 

for local governments. 
 

5.4 Availability of Funds.  This Program is partially operated with grant funds; therefore, the 
Program and disbursement of funds for it are subject to the availability of those funds. 
County funds used for payment under this Contract come, in part or in whole, from a 
grant awarded by TIDC.  Violation of any term of the grant provisions may result in 
TIDC placing a temporary hold on grant funds, permanently de-obligating all or part of 
the grant funds, requiring reimbursement for funds already spent, or barring County from 
receiving future grants.  If funds are lost or misused or used in violation of any term of 
the TIDC grant provisions or any term of this Contract, Contractor shall return funds in 
full to County. 

 
5.5 Delayed Payment to Contractor with Outstanding Debt. 

 
5.5.1 In section 5.5, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to the State or 

the County, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with Texas or 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 10 
 

County for which a notice with evidence has been filed with the County Auditor 
or Travis County Treasurer. 

5.5.2 Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes County not to 
draw a check on any County fund in favor of the Contractor, or its agent or 
assignee until the Debt is paid after the Travis County Treasurer notifies 
Contractor in writing that the Debt is outstanding. 

5.5.3 If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County to Contractor 
may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County may apply any amount 
County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of the Debt. 
 

5.6 Timely Payment.  County reimburses Contractor within thirty (30) Days after 1) County 
accepts the Services and 2) County receives a complete and accurate reimbursement 
request, whichever is later.  County pays interest on overdue payments in compliance 
with Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
5.7 Return of Overpayment.  Contractor is liable to County if County determines that a 

payment or reimbursement has resulted in overpayment.  Contractor shall repay any 
overpayment or over-reimbursement to County within thirty (30) Days after County 
requests a repayment.  If Contractor does not repay the overpayment or over-
reimbursement within thirty (30) Days, County may offset the amount of any 
overpayment or over-reimbursement against the next amount payable to Contractor under 
this or any other contract. 

 
5.8 Use of Funds.  Contractor acknowledges that all County funds provided to it hereunder 

must be used only to enable Contractor to meet its responsibilities as stated herein.  
 
 
6.0 RECORDS AND AUDITS 

 
6.1 Maintenance and Retention.  Contractor shall create and maintain all necessary and 

appropriate information and documentation (including accounting records) related to its 
operations and the Services in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
Records shall be kept in a readily available location until a financial audit in conformance 
with the State Single Audit Circular is completed and all questions arising from it are 
resolved satisfactorily for at least seven (7) years after providing the Services, or until any 
litigation concerning any Services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. 

 
6.2 Inventory.  Contractor shall inventory all furniture and equipment provided to Contractor 

by County or purchased by Contractor with contract funds and, Contractor shall provide 
County a copy of this inventory with its last expenditure report annually.  Contractor shall 
allow County to perform a physical inventory to verify the Contractor’s report if requested. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 11 
 

6.3 Information Required by TIDC.  Contractor shall provide all data and statistical 
information required to be reported to TIDC to the Director of Court Administration in a 
mutually acceptable electronic format.  County shall submit the necessary and required 
information to TIDC. 

 
6.4 Texas Public Information Act.  The Parties acknowledge that this Contract, all performance 

under this Contract, and all information obtained by County in connection with this 
Contract is subject to applicable provisions of the Texas Public Information Act, TEX. 
GOV'T. CODE, Chapter 552, and all legal authorities relating to such Act, including 
decisions and letter rulings issued by the Texas State Attorney General's Office; and 
Contractor agrees to provide County, citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties 
with reasonable access to all records pertaining to this Contract subject to and in 
accordance with the Texas Public Information Act. 

 
6.5 Fee Schedule.  The Judges shall provide a fee schedule as to the guidelines for payment 

amounts to the appointed attorneys.  A copy of that fee schedule is included in the Travis 
County Fair Defense Plan, and attached to this Contract as Exhibit 4 to Attachment A.  
County and Contractor acknowledge that if TIDC or the Texas legislature promulgates 
rules at any time during this Contract while County is receiving grant funding from TIDC, 
modifications to this Contract may be immediately necessary and both parties shall amend 
this Contract to bring it into compliance with these new laws or rules.   

 
6.6 Audit and Access.  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor shall make 

available to County or its duly authorized representatives any information and 
documentation in Contractor’s possession or control, which directly pertains to Services for 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as long as Contractor has access to the 
information and documentation.  If requested, Contractor shall permit the County Auditor 
and her representatives and TIDC and its representatives to audit Contractor’s financial 
records and accounting system, in particular in relation to compliance with budget and 
grant restrictions.  

 
6.7 Monitoring. County monitors Contractor in relation to utilization, activity and reporting of 

financial data to evaluate whether performance is within budget.  If there are deficiencies in 
performance, County shall provide Contractor with a written report detailing the fiscal and 
performance deficiencies within thirty (30) days.  Within forty five days after receipt of the 
report, Contractor shall respond in writing to each finding of deficiency and describe 
proposed corrective action to be taken by Contractor including the title of the person 
responsible for implementing the correction, the corrective action to be taken and the 
anticipated completion date.  If Contractor believes that corrective action is not needed, 
Contractor shall provide an explanation with specific reasons and supporting 
documentation for that position.  If appropriate, County approves the correction plan and 
Contractor shall comply with it. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 12 
 

6.8 Attorney-Client Privilege.  This Contract is not to be interpreted to permit County to 
examine the files of appointed attorneys pertaining to actual representation of Clients, and 
the laws defining the attorney-client privilege and attorney work-product must be strictly 
interpreted and observed to protect Client confidentiality. 

 
6.9 Single Audit.  If required based on the level of grant funding received in any contract year 

and the applicable Uniform Grant Management Standards, Contractor shall have a single 
audit conducted in compliance with the State Single Audit Circular issued under the 
Uniform Grant Management Standards and submit a copy of the results to County within 
30 days after the earlier of when Contractor receives the results of the audit or nine months 
after the end of the contract year. 

 
 

7.0 RISK ALLOCATION  
 

7.1 Definition of Claim.  In section 7.2 and 7.3, “Claim” means any negligence, cause of action, 
suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, damages, or liability of any kind, 
including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney’s fees. 
 

7.2 Indemnification.  CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND DEFEND COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, 
AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM ALL CLAIMS, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR 

ANY ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING OUT OF 

OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICES PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS CONTRACT, 
WHETHER SUCH INJURIES, DEATH OR DAMAGES ARE CAUSED BY CONTRACTOR’S SOLE 

NEGLIGENCE OR THE JOINT NEGLIGENCE OF CONTRACTOR AND ANY OTHER THIRD PARTY.  THIS 

INDEMNIFICATION ALSO APPLIES TO ANY CLAIMS ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH ANY ALLEGED 

OR ACTUAL INFRINGEMENT OF EXISTING LICENSE, PATENTS OR COPYRIGHTS APPLICABLE TO 

MATERIALS USED OR PRODUCED UNDER THIS CONTRACT.  THIS OBLIGATION TO DEFEND AND 

INDEMNIFY COUNTY CONTINUES BEYOND THE TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT. 
 

7.3 Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any Claim against 
Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, Contractor shall give County Notice 
within three (3) Working Days after Contractor becomes aware of the Claim or threat of 
Claim.  Unless otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County copies of all pertinent 
papers received by Contractor regarding the Claim.  Contractor’s Notice shall include: 

 
7.3.1 A written description of the Claim; 
7.3.2 The name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the Claim; 
7.3.3 The basis of the Claim; 
7.3.4 The court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Claim was instituted; and 
7.3.5 The name of any other persons against whom this Claim is being made or 

threatened. 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 13 
 

7.4 Requirement for Insurance.  Contractor shall have and maintain at least the minimum types 
of insurance listed in Section 7.6 throughout the term of this Contract, as extended.  
Contractor’s insurance must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to 
applicable generally accepted business standards related to the risks associated with 
providing the Services, but not less than the minimum coverage limits listed in Section 7.6. 
Depending on Services provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance requirements or 
alternate insurance options may apply in addition to those listed in Section 7.6.  If County 
authorizes Contractor to subcontract Services under this Contract, Contractor shall either 
maintain insurance that covers all subcontractors and complies with 7.5 and 7.6 throughout 
the term of the Contract or ensure that all subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the 
work related to the Services that is performed by them and that their insurance complies with 
sections 7.4, 7.5, 7.6 and 7.7 while performing work related to the Services. 
 

7.5 General Insurance Requirements.  Contractor shall comply with the following requirements 
related to insurance: 

 
7.5.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas that 

have an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to use surplus 
carriers, these carriers are subject to County approval. 

7.5.2 Insurance that names County as an additional insured is primary for all claims 
under it. 

7.5.3 Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the required 
insurance in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or 
lapse and shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise 
be reduced during this Contract. Contractor is responsible for all premiums, 
deductibles, and self-insured retention. 

7.5.4 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-approved 
form and signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the Purchasing Agent within 
ten (10) Working Days after the earlier of execution of the Contract by both 
parties, or the effective date of the Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must 
include the Travis County contract number, all deductibles and self-insured 
retention, and the endorsements applicable to the type of insurance as stated in 
7.6. 

7.5.5 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the Purchasing 
Agent within ten (10) Days of each renewal of insurance during the term of this 
Contract in compliance with 7.6 and 7.7. 

7.5.6 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and 
endorsements at no additional expense to County.  

7.5.7 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance 
requirements during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor make 
reasonable adjustments when the Services have changed or expanded. 

7.5.8 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be 
interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor.  
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 14 
 

7.6. Minimum Coverage. Contractor, at no cost to County, shall maintain each type of insurance 
coverage described in this Section with liability limits at least as great as the minimum 
insurance coverage in this Section, and this insurance shall be applicable to both Contractor 
and any subcontractor performing work related to Services.  Minimum insurance coverage may 
be written as combined single limits or structured using primary and excess or umbrella 
coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.  

7.6.1. Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the   following 
minimum requirements: 

7.6.1.1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas 
Workers’ Compensation Act. 

7.6.1.2. Employers’ liability with minimum coverage limits as follows: 

7.6.1.2.1. $500,000 bodily injury each accident, 

7.6.1.2.2. $500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 

7.6.1.2.3. $500,000 aggregate policy limit. 

7.6.1.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

7.6.1.3.1. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 

7.6.1.3.2. Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

7.6.2. Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following minimum 
requirements: 

7.6.2.1 Minimum limits for coverage:  

7.6.2.1.1 $1,000,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage,   

7.6.2.1.2 $1,000,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and 
Advertisement, and  

7.6.2.1.3 $2,000,000 aggregate policy limit. 

7.6.2.2 The Policy shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

7.6.2.2.1 Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 
 

7.6.2.2.2 Independent Contractor Coverage, 
 

7.6.2.2.3 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 15 
 

7.6.2.2.4 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 

7.6.2.2.5 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

7.6.3. Automobile liability insurance that meets the following minimum requirements: 

7.6.3.1 Automobile Insurance Requirement. As Contractor represents that it provides 
no transportation services of any type, and Contractor’s use of motor vehicles 
is strictly limited to travel to and from work or work sites, Contractor shall 
provide evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 / 
$300,000 / $50,000. 

7.6.3.2 Any policy Contractor provides in compliance with section 7.6.3.1 shall be 
subject to the laws of Texas and include the following endorsements in favor 
of Travis County: 

7.6.3.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 

7.6.3.2.2 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 

7.6.3.2.3 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

7.6.4 Professional liability / Errors & Omissions insurance that meets the following minimum 
requirements: 

7.6.4.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions and sexual harassment:  

7.6.4.1.1 $1,000,000 per claim, and 

7.6.4.1.2 $3,000,000 aggregate policy limit. 

7.6.4.2 The Policy shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

7.6.4.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), and 

7.6.4.2.2. Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205). 

7.6.4.2.3 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010) 

7.6.4.3 If this coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive date must be 
prior to the earlier of the date this Contract is signed or its effective date and 
include a three (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
ends.  The Certificate of Insurance must state whether the coverage is claims 
made and, if so, contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended 
reporting date. 

7.6.4.4. Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s professional 
liability insurance shall provide Contractor with current certificates of 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 16 
 

insurance on the state approved form annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

7.6.5 Blanket Crime Policy Insurance. 

7.6.5.1 Contractor shall provide a Blanket Crime Policy with a minimum coverage of 
$150,000. 

7.6.5.2 If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be 
prior to the date Services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this 
Contract, whichever is earlier.  Coverage shall include a three (3) year 
extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated.  
The Certificate of Insurance shall clarify whether coverage is for claims made 
and shall contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended 
reporting period date. 

7.6.5.3 Additional insured status for Travis County is not required. 

7.7. Filing Insurance Certificates.  Immediately after execution of this Contract, and upon each 
yearly renewal thereafter, Contractor must submit the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, in 
compliance with Section 7.6 to the following address: 

   Cyd Grimes C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor) 
   Travis County Purchasing 
   Contract #                
   P.O. Box 1748 
   Austin, Texas 78767 

 
   

8.0 MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS 
 

8.1 Requests for Changes.  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to this Contract to the 
Project Manager with a copy to the Purchasing Agent. 

8.2 Change of Name.  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a change of Contractor’s 
name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing Agent and Project Manager immediately.  County 
does not recognize any change in its Contractor’s obligations until Commissioners Court 
approves the change. 

 
8.3 Subcontracting.  Contractor may not subcontract with any other person to perform any of the 

Services or other obligations under this Contract.  Subcontracting does not include the 
appointment of attorneys for representation of Clients or the employment of speakers or the use 
of administrative support services.  If this Contract is modified and subcontracting is later 
allowed, Contractor must provide for insurance for subcontracts as stated in Section 7.4, 7.5 and 
7.6 and require subcontractors to complete and update a Certification Regarding Debarment on 
the form in Attachment C whenever there is a change in status and provide the Purchasing Agent 
and Project Manager with copies of these certifications. 

 
    

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 17 
 

9.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

9.1 Procedure.  
 

9.1.1 Correspondence.  In this section, “Correspondence” means any notice, document, 
letter, email, or other tangible transfer of information related to an issue and the 
“Dispute Manager” means the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project 
Manager. 

9.1.2 Notice of Dispute.  If the Contractor and the Project Manager have been unable to 
resolve any issue related to this Contract, Contractor may submit a notification of 
the dispute to the Dispute Manager.  The Notice should contain specific details 
about the issues and Contractor’s preferred resolution of the dispute, including 
mediation, if desired. The Contractor may include any other relevant information.    

9.1.3 Flow of Information.  After the Dispute Manager receives the Contractor’s 
Notice, the Dispute Manager represents County in the administration of the 
dispute.  After this Notice, any additional Correspondence is not effective unless 
it is directed to or sent by the Dispute Manager.  If Contractor disagrees with any 
Correspondence issued by the Dispute Manager, Contractor shall submit a written 
response detailing its reasons for disagreement with the Correspondence to the 
Dispute Manager and the Project Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of 
the Correspondence. 

9.1.4 Proposed Resolution.  Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute Manager receives 
Contractor’s response, the Dispute Manager must send a final written proposal for 
resolution of the dispute to Contractor. 

9.1.5 Appeal.  If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to Contractor’s 
satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written appeal to the Commissioners Court 
through the Dispute Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the 
unsatisfactory proposal. The Dispute Manager forwards a copy of the appeal to 
the Project Manager for it to be placed on the Commissioners Court agenda. The 
Commissioners Court hears the appeal.   Contractor may make a presentation at 
that hearing.  
 

9.2 Mediation.  When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may use a mutually 
acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction. Mediation 
is conducted in compliance with Chapter 154 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies 
Code. Unless both parties are satisfied with the mediated resolution, the mediation is not a 
final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the 
mediation must remain confidential in compliance with section 154.073 of the Texas Civil 
Practice and Remedies Code, unless both parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 18 
 

9.3 Remedies for Non-Compliance with Contract or Deficiency Report after Monitoring.  If 
Contractor is in breach of this Contract County may take one or more of the following 
actions: 

9.3.1 disallow all or part of the cost of the action that is not in compliance and seek a 
return of the cost, 

9.3.2 impose sanctions, other than fines, 
9.3.3 temporarily withhold all payments until all breaches and deficiencies are 

corrected, 
9.3.4 not renew the contract at the end of the current term, or 
9.3.5 terminate the contract in whole or in part. 

 
9.4 Suspension.  After notice to Contractor, County may suspend this Contract in whole or in 

part and withhold further payments to Contractor until County and Contractor resolve the 
issues causing the suspension. Contractor shall not incur additional obligations of Contract 
funds after receipt of a Notice of suspension until Contractor receives a Notice from County 
that the issues supporting suspension are resolved to County’s satisfaction. 
 

9.5 Non-Waiver of Default.  County expressly reserves all its rights under this Contract.  Any 
action that County takes to exercise any right or remedy shall not be interpreted as a waiver 
of any other rights or remedies or preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under 
this Contract or under any law.  A payment, act, or omission by County shall not impair or 
prejudice any of its rights or remedies.  
 
 

10.0 TERMINATION 
 

10.1 Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by 
giving the other party Notice in writing of termination at least sixty (60) Days before the 
effective date of the termination.  If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable 
for any loss of future costs of Contractor, but Contractor shall be entitled to compensation 
necessary to pay remaining outstanding administrative costs due as a result of Contractor 
performing the functions and duties outlined in this Contract before the effective date of 
termination.  

 
10.2 Termination for Default.  Either party may terminate this Contract for the failure of the 

other party to perform any material provision of this Contract by delivering Notice of 
termination for default. A material provision would include any violation of the terms of 
the funding grant or non-compliance with the terms of the Travis County Fair Defense 
Plan.  A party may not terminate for default if the party was a contributing cause of the 
failure to perform. The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives 
that Notice. If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of future 
costs anticipated by Contractor. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 19 
 

 
10.3 Automatic Termination.  This Contract shall immediately and automatically terminate upon 

the occurrence of any one of the following: 
 

10.3.1 Dissolution of Contractor; 
10.3.2 Adjudication of insolvency, under state or federal law or regulation, 
10.3.3 Assignment for the benefit of creditors; 
10.3.4 Any action seeking or having the effect of imposing bankruptcy, reorganization or 

receivership, or seeking relief under that law, unless the action has been vacated 
within sixty (60) Days; 

10.3.5 Appointment of a receiver for all or a substantial portion of its property that is not 
discharged or vacated within sixty (60) Days; 

10.3.6 Any action of custody, attachment or sequestration against Contractor; 
10.3.7 Cessation of doing business or termination  of its business operations; 
10.3.8 Abandonment of its duties and responsibilities in this Contract by either party; 
10.3.9 Failure to perform its responsibilities in a professional manner by either party; or 
10.3.10 Any substantiated allegation of wrongdoing by Contractor that could materially 

interfere with its performance of its duties.    
 
10.4 Funding Out.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Commissioners Court 

or TIDC fails to provide funding for this Contract during the budget planning and adoption 
process for the next County fiscal year, County may terminate this Contract after giving 
Contractor thirty (30) Days’ Notice that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to 
fund it.  

 
 
11.0 NOTICE 

 
11.1 Written Notice.  All notices between the parties and related to this Contract shall be given 

to the other party in writing.  If a Notice is delivered in person to the address in this 
section 11.0 for the party to whom the Notice is given, that Notice is deemed to have been 
given immediately.   If a Notice is placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by 
registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the address in this 
section 11.0 for the party to whom the notice is given, that Notice is deemed to have been 
given on the third Working Day following mailing. 

 
11.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes and notices under this Contract 

is:    
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 20 
 

With copies to (registered or certified mail, not required): 
 

Project Manager’s Name:  Debra Hale 
Project Manager’s Title:  Director of Criminal Court Administration 
Project Manager’s Department: Travis County Criminal Courts  
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 

11.3 Contractor Address.  The address of Contractor for all purposes and notices under this 
Contract is: 

 
Capital Area Private Defender Services 
Attn: Betty Blackwell 
1306 Nueces 
Austin, Texas 78701 

 
11.4 Change of Address.  Each party may change its address for notice by giving Notice of the 

new address.  County and Contractor shall give Notice to each other of any change in its 
address, including a change in the person to whom attention is directed, within fifteen (15) 
Days of the change. 

 
12.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
12.1 Time is of the Essence.  Timing of performance of the Services and of delivery of all 

deliverables is of the essence.  If any delivery or completion dates cannot be met, 
Contractor must inform the Project Manager immediately.  Providing this information does 
not change the delivery or completion dates unless this Contract is amended. 

 
12.2 Forfeiture of Contract Benefits.  If Contractor has done business with a Key Contracting 

Person during the 365 day period immediately before the date of execution of this Contract 
or does business with any Key Contracting Person during the performance of this Contract, 
Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all performance 
by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to 
Contractor pursuant to this Contract.  In this section and Attachment D, “Key Contracting 
Person means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Ethics Affidavit attached to 
this Contract as Attachment D.  In this section and Attachment D, “Is doing business” and 
“has done business” mean: 

 
12.2.1  Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing with a 

value of more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for 
the purchase of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either 
legal or equitable; or 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 21 
 

12.2.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods, or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the 
aggregate in a calendar year; 

12.2.3 But do not include any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key 
Contracting Person at a posted, published, or marked price available to the public, 
or any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business. 

 
12.3 Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized under Texas law 

as constituting impossible conditions.  Neither party is financially liable to the other party 
for delays or failures in Contract performance caused by Force Majeure. These delays or 
failures to perform extend the period of performance for a period of time equal to the 
subsistence of the impossible conditions.  If Force Majeure conditions exist, the party 
affected by them shall give the other party Notice within five (5) Working Days after the 
conditions begin.  If timely Notice is impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then 
the party must provide Notice in as timely a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not 
provided timely, the party experiencing Force Majeure waives it as a defense. 

 
12.4 Entire Agreement.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between County and 

Contractor related to the subject matter of this Contract.  If County and Contractor made 
any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations that County and Contractor 
have not expressly stated in this Contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, 
or representations are null and void.    

 
12.4.1 The Attachments listed below are a part of this Contract, and are promised 

performances by Contractor under this Contract: 
 
12.4.1.1 Attachment A – Description of Services & Performance Measures 

12.4.1.1.1 Exhibit 1 Capital Area Private Defender Services Budget, 
Objectives, and Evaluation Measures  

12.4.1.1.2 Exhibit 2 –Contractor’s Written Report 
12.4.1.1.3 Exhibit 3 – MOU between ACDLA, ABA, & Judiciary 
12.4.1.1.4 Exhibit 4 – Travis County Fair Defense Plan 
12.4.1.1.5 Exhibit 5 – Reporting Tables   

12.4.1.2 Attachment B – Reimbursement Requirements and Limits 
12.4.1.2.1 Exhibit 1 – Travis County Financial Forms 

12.4.1.3 Attachment C – Certification Regarding Debarment 
12.4.1.4 Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit 

12.4.1.5.1 Exhibit 1 – List of Key Contracting Persons 
 

12.5 Authority.  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 22 
 

12.5.1 The Purchasing Agent acts as County’s overall Contract administrator.  The 
Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit instructions and 
receive information. 

12.5.2 Project Manager has been designated as County’s primary representative on the 
project and acts on behalf of County with respect to Services.  Project Manager 
has the authority to interpret and define County policies and decisions regarding 
Services. 

12.5.3 Project Manager may designate representatives to transmit instructions and 
receive information.  Project Manager reviews, inspects and examines 
Contractor’s performance of Services. 
 

12.6 Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the United States of America 
and Texas and all obligations under this Contract are performable in Travis County, 
Texas.    

 
12.7 Binding Contract.  Despite any other provision in this Contract, this Contract is binding 

upon County and Contractor and their respective successors, executors and 
administrators.  

 
12.8 Non-Party Beneficiaries.  No provision in this Contract creates any rights in any person 

or entity that is not a party to this Contract, and the rights to performance in this Contract 
are only enforceable by the County and the Contractor. 

 
12.9 Authority of Judges.  Notwithstanding the terms of this Contract, any Judge may appoint 

attorneys from the Appointment List pursuant to article 26.04 of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure when that Judge deems it necessary or in cases where exigent 
circumstances exist. 

 
12.10 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their terms are performable 

after the termination of this Contract shall survive such termination and remain fully 
performable. 

 
12.11 Interpretational Guidelines. 

12.11.1 Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses.  This Contract must not be 
interpreted to include anything that is effective as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity or a waiver of any affirmative defenses available to County. 

12.11.2 Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Contract remains valid and binding. 

12.11.3 Computation of Time.  In computing a time period under this Contract, exclude 
the first Day and include the last Day.  If the last Day does not occur on a 
Working Day, the last day is extended until the next Working Day. 
Commissioners Court customarily designates the following as holidays: New 
Year's Day (January 1), Martin Luther King's Birthday (third Monday in 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 23 
 

January), Presidents' Day (third Monday in February),  Memorial Day (fourth 
Monday in May), Independence Day (July 4), Labor Day (first Monday in 
September), Veterans' Day (November 11), Thanksgiving and day after (last 
Thursday and Friday in November), Christmas Day and either the day before or 
day after which ever results in a four day weekend if possible (December 25 
plus one). 

12.11.4 Number and Gender.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of 
any gender are construed to include all genders and words in singular and plural 
are construed to include the other. 

12.11.5 Headings.  The headings and titles throughout this Contract are included only to 
make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection 
and are not to be used in construing this Contract. 

 
12.12 Exemption from County Purchasing Act.  Pursuant to Section 262.024 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, the Commissioners Court hereby orders this Contract exempt from 
the requirements established by Section 262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code 
because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services. 

 
12.13 Duplicate Originals.  This Contract may be executed in duplicate originals and is 

effective when executed by both parties. 
 

13.0 SIGNATURES  
 
13.1 Those signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing him or her or themselves as 

signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, warrant and guarantee that he, she or they have 
been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this Contract on behalf of Contractor and to bind 
Contractor validly and legally to all terms, performances, and provisions in this Contract. 

 
CAPITAL AREA PRIVATE DEFENDER SERVICES  TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
By:____________________________________   By:__________________________ 
 
[Name of Director]        Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Member, Board of Director     Travis County Judge 
 
Date:___________________________    Date:______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form By: _________________________ Date: ________________ 
     Assistant County Attorney 
 
Funds Verified By:   _________________________ Date: ________________ 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

walkerj
Draft



 24 
 

     Travis County Auditor 
 
Approved by Purchasing:  __________________________ Date: ________________ 
     Travis County Purchasing Agent  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 25 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
DESCRIPTION  OF SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 
   

1.0 Description of Services. 

1.1 Provision of Qualified Attorneys.  Contractor shall create and maintain an Appointment 
List and provide Project Manager with the Appointment List to use when appointing 
attorneys to Clients.  Additionally, in the event that a Judge needs to appoint an attorney 
from the bench, Contractor shall provide an appropriate, qualified attorney from the 
Appointment List and Contractor shall notify Project Manager.  

1.2 Review of Legal Representation. To ensure that a high quality of legal representation is 
provided to indigent defendants, Contractor shall monitor, review, mentor and train the 
attorneys on its list.  Included in this review, Contractor shall provide continuing legal 
education classes for the attorneys on its Appointment List.  Contractor shall also attend 
court proceedings on a regular basis in order to observe attorneys on the Appointment List, 
and provide guidance to attorneys needing assistance to fully perform their role as 
appointed legal counsel.    

1.3 Assistance to Indigent Defendants.  Contractor shall provide, through the internet and 
telephone access, a means to receive complaints about the performance of appointed 
attorneys directly from Clients.  Competent personnel of Contractor should be available 
daily to receive complaints and properly address them based on a written procedure.  
Contractor shall develop this procedure, including a procedure for reassigning a Case if 
Contractor believes it is in the interest of justice.  However, Contractor acknowledges that a 
Judge may at any time determine the adequacy of the performance of any attorney in court-
appointed Cases and take whatever action the Judge, in his or her sole discretion, decides is 
necessary and appropriate under the circumstances.  The number and nature of such 
complaints, as well as their disposition, shall be included in summary form, in the annual 
report of Office to County, as described in Section 6.7 below. 

1.4 Management and Supervision of County Budget Approved for Indigent Defense.  
Contractor is responsible for maintaining a high level of representation for Clients without 
raising the costs incurred by County for indigent defense.   

1.4.1 Controlling Costs.  Contractor must maintain control of costs based on: 
  

1.4.1.1 ensuring that the representation provided to each Case is appropriate,  
1.4.1.2 scrutinizing requests for investigators, experts and second chairs, and  
1.4.1.3 carefully monitoring all payment vouchers submitted by attorneys.  

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 26 
 

1.4.2 Monitoring and Reporting Costs.  Taking into account the number and 
complexity of Cases, Contractor shall provide a report and Notice to the 
Commissioners Court if the quarterly costs for representation for indigent 
defense exceed those costs for the same quarter during the previous fiscal year 
by more than five (5) percent, or if cumulatively the costs for any two or more 
quarters during the fiscal year exceed the same period during the previous year 
by more than five (5) percent.  This report and notice is to provide 
Commissioners Court the opportunity to take appropriate action, up to and 
including termination of this Contract.  The report should provide an analysis 
comparing the number and complexity of the cases in each period and providing 
explanations about circumstances that have affected the costs during the current 
period.  
 

2.0 Performance Benchmarks. 

2.1 Attorney Training.  Contractor and County acknowledge that ongoing professional training 
is necessary to keep attorneys abreast of changes and developments in the law.  Contractor 
must ensure that attorneys on the Appointment List maintain enough hours of training to 
comply with the State Bar of Texas as well as the Travis County Fair Defense Plan.  
Contractor shall facilitate sufficient training, whether in-house or through a qualified 
provider of Continuing Legal Education certified by the State Bar of Texas, that allows 
attorneys on the Appointment List to stay up-to-date on developments in relevant law and 
procedure.  Contractor shall provide training that covers topics suggested by the judges 
after a majority vote of the judges.  This subject shall be included in the annual report of 
Contractor as described in Section 6.7 below. 

2.2 Attorney Evaluation.  The Executive Director of the Program, or their designee, shall 
evaluate the professional performance of appointed attorneys at least annually, or more 
frequently as Contractor determines necessary.  The Executive Director shall also consider 
judicial, Board, and Review Committee feedback during the course of the evaluation of 
professional performance of appointed attorneys, as well as taking into account any 
complaints or grievances from Clients.  The number of evaluations conducted and the 
results thereof shall be included in summary form in the annual report of Contractor to 
County as described in Section 6.7 below. 

2.3 Attorney Caseloads.  Contractor and County agree that the number and type of Cases for 
which a lawyer is responsible may impact the quality of representation Clients receive.  
While there are many variables to consider, including the seriousness or complexity of each 
Case and the skill and experience of an attorney, useful information might be gathered from 
evaluation of the caseloads of appointed attorneys.  Contractor shall meet the requirements 
set out in Exhibit 4 to Attachment A.  To this end, Contractor shall include the caseloads of 
each Program attorney by types of Cases, as well as the average appointed caseloads for 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 27 
 

Program attorneys as a whole in the monthly and annual reports of Contractor to County, as 
described in Section 6.7 below. 

2.4 Initial Client Meetings.  Contractor and County agree that attorneys should make initial 
contact with a Client within one (1) Working Day of attorney appointment.   When a Client 
is in custody at a Travis County facility, the attorney should conduct a client interview as 
soon as practicable after being appointed by Contractor, and no later than five (5) days after 
the attorney receives notice of appointment of a client’s misdemeanor Case and not later 
than ten (10) days from notification of a felony Case appointment, to obtain the necessary 
information to provide qualified representation in the early stages of the case.  This initial 
contact also serves to provide the client with information concerning the lawyer’s 
representation and the course a criminal Case takes in the Travis County District Courts 
and County Courts-at-Law.   

2.5 Monitoring Initial Meetings.  Contractor will devise a system to monitor the occurrence of 
initial contacts and early interviews of Clients. The monitoring system should include, but 
is not limited to, recording the number of days between appointment and the attorney’s 
initial client meeting.  An attorney shall not be paid unless it is verified that he or she has 
contacted client within the time period specified by the Travis County Fair Defense Plan, 
unless good cause is shown by the attorney for non-compliance with the Travis County Fair 
Defense Plan.  Additionally, Contractor shall keep track of the days from appointment to 
initial interview contact when a defendant is in jail.  The results shall be included in the 
monthly and annual reports of Contractor to County, as described in Section 6.7 below. 

2.6 Mentoring.   Contractor shall develop a mentoring program to solicit experienced attorneys 
to assist assigned attorneys in developing specific skills and knowledge that will 
enhance the assigned attorneys’ professional and personal growth in relation to the 
representation of Clients.  In this program, the experienced attorneys may provide 
instruction on specific issues, coaching on a particular skill, sharing of resources and 
networks, encouragement in professional growth and development.  Contractor shall solicit 
and provide mentors and support them, as needed. Contractor shall develop various 
methods of creating mentoring relationships, including possibly mentor initiated and 
program matching.  Contractor shall develop a policy describing the mentoring program.   

 

3.0 Evaluation of Program. 

3.1 Collection of Data for Evaluation.  Contractor shall develop surveys to collect 
information to assist the Oversight Committee in its evaluation of the Program.  Contractor 
through its Executive Director shall create a simple survey to be given to the Judges at the 
beginning of each contract year.  This survey should address the overall impression of the 
Judges regarding the quality of the representation of Clients and other defendants, and in 
particular Clients and defendants with mental health issues, both by the Program and by 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 28 
 

private practitioners and the impact of such cases.  Contractor, through its Executive 
Director, shall create a survey to be distributed to the Judges following jury trials to assess 
their satisfaction with representation by assigned attorneys in these trials.  Contractor 
through its Executive Director shall also create a survey to be distributed to the Clients to 
assess the level of overall satisfaction with the representation received from the assigned 
attorneys and the Program.  
 

3.2 Creation of the Oversight Committee.  County and Contractor acknowledge that evaluation 
of Contractor’s performance of the Services is a function that necessarily includes the 
participation of an impartial review, and for that purpose have created an Oversight 
Committee.  The purpose of this committee is to ensure the objective evaluation of 
Contractor and to ensure that Clients receive appropriate, timely and qualified 
representation.  County provides written notification to Contractor of the names and contact 
information for members of the Oversight Committee by September 30 of each year.  
Membership of the oversight committee shall consist of the following persons or their 
designee: 

 
3.2.1 Presiding District Court Judge  
3.2.2 Travis County Presiding County Court-at-Law Judge  
3.2.3 Travis County Court Administrator 
3.2.4 Travis County Criminal Justice Planning Chair 
3.2.5 A Travis County Commissioner or the County Judge 
3.2.6 Travis County Director of Mental Health Public Defender 
3.2.7 Travis County Director of Juvenile Public Defender 

Any changes in the membership of the Oversight Committee shall be made in writing and 
approved by both parties.   

3.3  Function of the Oversight Committee.  County shall ensure that the Oversight Committee 
does the following:   

3.3.1 Conducts an annual Contract review, assessing the performance of Contractor; 
3.3.2 Holds quarterly meetings with the Board of Directors of Contractor reviewing 

the state of the Program; 
3.3.3 Reviews monthly reports on the amount of funds spent on indigent defense and 

comparisons with similar prior periods;  
3.3.4 Reviews the annual report presented by Contractor before publishing; and 
3.3.5 Makes recommendations to the Commissioners Court based on the Oversight 

Committee’s review. 
 

3.4 Result of Review.  Upon the submission of any report and/or recommendation by the 
Oversight Committee, either party may require the other party to meet and discuss any 
changes to the Program or amendments to this Contract that may be warranted based on the 
report and recommendations.   

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 29 
 

 
3.5 Cooperation and Coordination.  Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with County 

staff, Judges and the Oversight Committee as reasonable and necessary and as required by 
the terms of this Contract.   

 
3.6 Establishment of the Review Committee.  In addition to the Oversight Committee, the 

Contractor’s Board of Directors must create a Review Committee in accordance with Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure 26.047(e).  The Contractor’s Board of Directors must name a 
chair for this review committee.   

 
3.7 Function of the Review Committee.  The Review Committee  will: 

3.7.1 Make final determinations on acceptance or removal of qualified attorneys for 
the Appointment List;  

3.7.2 Make the final determination on the level of an attorney on the Appointment 
List, described in Exhibit 4 to Attachment A; 

3.7.3 Hear appeals of appointed attorneys concerning payment vouchers required by 
section 5.1 below; 

3.7.4 Hear specific allegations of unsatisfactory performance of an attorney; and  
3.7.5 Hear any matter referred by Contractor for adverse action against an attorney on 

the Appointment List. 
3.7.6 Hear an appeal required by Section 5.2 below. 

3.8  Extent of Authority of Review Committee.  Any determination of the Review Committee 
regarding acceptance, removal or level on the Appointment List is final, binding, and 
conclusive. 

4.0  Requests for Additional Assistance 

4.1.  Potential Additional Attorneys.  If the attorney appointed to a Case seeks a second chair 
because of the complexity of the Case, the complexity of a part of the Case or for any other 
purpose, the appointed attorney shall make that request to the Executive Director of the 
Program.   If the Executive Director denies the request, the appointed attorney may appeal 
the decision to the Review Committee.  If the Review Committee approves second chair 
assistance as necessary to provide effective representation, the Review Committee shall 
immediately instruct the Director to appoint a second chair and state the amount of funds 
approved for the second chair.  The Judge presiding over any Case may, in his or her sole 
discretion, determine that a second chair is necessary or appropriate to provide proper 
representation in the Case and either appoint a second chair or direct Contractor to do so.      

4.2  Requests for Investigators.  If an appointed attorney seeks authority to hire an investigator, 
the appointed attorney shall request authority from the Contractor.  For purposes of 
determining whether an investigator is necessary in any Case, Contractor shall have an 
investigator on staff to assist.  Contractor’s investigator must make a list of appropriate 
investigators, determine what appropriate rates are for investigative services, and in each 
Case, analyze how much, if any, investigative work is necessary. If Contractor denies the 
appointed attorney’s request for authority to hire an investigator, the appointed attorney 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 30 
 

may appeal his or her request to the Judge presiding over the Case, and the appointed 
attorney shall be given an opportunity to have a hearing upon said denial and make an 
appropriate appellate record. 

4.3 Requests for Experts.  If an appointed attorney seeks authority to hire an expert, the 
appointed attorney shall request authority from Contractor.  If Contractor denies the 
request, the appointed attorney may appeal his or her request to the Judge presiding over 
the Case, and the appointed attorney shall be given an opportunity to have a hearing upon 
said denial and make an appropriate appellate record.    

 

5.0 Procedures for Reviewing Payment Requests. 

5.1  Initial Payment Determination.  Contractor shall make the initial review of requests for 
payment by appointed attorneys, investigators, and experts.  Contractor shall apply the fee 
schedule included in Exhibit 4 to Attachment A to each person requesting payment in each 
Case and scrutinize each request for payment.  If an appointed attorney, investigator or 
expert is dissatisfied with Contractor’s decision concerning payment, that person may 
appeal that decision to the Review Committee.  The decisions of the Review Committee on 
payment may be appealed to the Regional Presiding Judge. 

5.2 Submission of Payment Requests to County.  When the payee is satisfied with the review 
of the payment request or a decision has been made by the Review Committee, Contractor 
shall forward the payment request to the Project Director for appropriate review and 
processing by Travis County. 

 

6.0  Programmatic Reporting Requirements. 

6.1 Contractor shall provide County all programmatic data that County needs to complete the 
quarterly on-line progress report that must be submitted to TIDC.  Contractor shall 
provide programmatic reports monthly, quarterly, and annually to the Project Manager. 

 
6.2 Monthly, Contractor shall submit reports on the items listed in Outputs under Evaluation 

in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A. Monthly reports are due to the Program Manager no later 
than the 10th day of the month after the month to which they relate.   

 
6.3 Quarterly, Contractor shall submit reports on  

6.3.1 all items in the Reporting Tables in Exhibit 5 to Attachment A and   
6.3.2  all items listed under Evaluation in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A.   
 

6.4 Quarterly reports are due to the Project Manager no later than the 10th day of the month 
after the end of the quarter to which they relate as follows: 
6.4.1 For October, November, & December reporting due January 10th  
6.4.2 For January, February, & March reporting due April 10th  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 31 
 

6.4.3 For April, May, & June reporting due July 10th. 
 
6.5 The quarterly report for the last quarter (July, August, & September) may be included in 

the annual report and is due to the Project Manager no later than October 30th.    
 

6.6 County and Contractor acknowledge that the items in the Reporting Tables in Exhibit 5 to 
Attachment A and  the items listed under Evaluation in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A may 
not be an exhaustive list of reporting or conditions that may develop throughout this 
Contract.  Any requests to change or modify these reporting requirements or conditions 
shall be made in writing. 

 
6.7 Annual Report of Contractor.  For each year of this Contract, Contractor shall submit a 

written report to County, no later than October 30, commencing in October, 2015, 
detailing Contractor’s performance as required throughout this Contract including this 
Attachment. The annual report shall include the quarterly report for the last quarter.  In 
addition to a cumulative report for the entire year on all items covered in the quarterly 
reports, the annual report shall include a report on each of the Performance Benchmarks 
in section 2 of this Attachment A.   The annual report will also include the annual 
expenditures of the Program based on the budget of the Program, setting forth the 
operation and administrative costs of the Program for the year.  Contractor shall provide 
this report to County via the Project Manager who shall then be responsible for 
submitting the data to TIDC. 

 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 32 
 

EXHIBIT 1 TO ATTACHMENT A 
Budget for Capital Area Private Defender Services 

October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 
OPERATING EXPENSES Total 

Attorney ‐ Director of the Managed Assigned Counsel Program  $160,000  

Attorney ‐ Assistant Director of the Managed Assigned Counsel Program  $130,000  

Supervising Attorney of the Managed Assigned Counsel Program  $110,000  

Investigator  $80,000  

Administrative Assistant  $50,000  

Part‐time Financial Analyst  $35,000  

SALARY EXPENSE  $565,000  

Fringe Benefits ‐ Medical, Retirement, Long‐Term Disability, Parking, etc.  $104,060  

Taxes @7.65% up to base salary of $113,700  $38,434  

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS  $707,494  

NON‐PROFIT OPERATING EXPENSES   

INSURANCE (Professional insurance coverage for Director and/or Board of 
Directors) 

 $4,000  

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS (Travel/training for professional 
development and memberships, including bar dues.) 

 $10,500  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Accounting/Tax‐CPA to file non‐profit tax returns 
and other financial documents) 

 $5,000  

OFFICE SPACE (provided by Austin Bar Association through September 2015. 

1st year does not include rent and technology maintenance.) 
 $0  

MENTORSHIP PROGRAM (Mentoring  for new and current attorneys seeking to 

increase levels on the list.) 
 $30,000  

OFFICE SUPPLIES/MISC.  $11,100  

NON‐PROFIT CONTRACT BUDGET TOTALS  $768,094  

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  $768,094   

CAPITAL/EQUIPMENT (One‐time office startup costs: Telephones)  $1,800  

GRAND TOTAL  $769,894  
   

This budget was developed under the assumption that the Services are based on a 12-month period. The schedule 
provides the Contractor twelve months of funds at each of the original agreed upon funding levels. If the 
Contractor has a delayed start in the first contract year, it will be necessary to adjust the amount of compensation 
payable in that year. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 33 
 

 Objectives 

Contractor shall perform all Services in a manner consistent with and designed to attain the 
following objectives stated in the TIDC grant contract: 

Objective 1: Maintain a separate legal entity, with an advisory committee, governing board, director and 
appropriate staff. 

Objective 2: Implement a fully functional managed assigned counsel program dedicated to representing 
indigent adult defendants charged with a felony or misdemeanor criminal offense in Travis County - by 
January 1, 2015.  

Objective 3: Establish attorney, investigator and expert performance standards by October 15, 2014. 

Objective 4: Monitor compliance with established attorney, investigator and expert performance 
standards - by October 1 each year beginning in October, 2015. 

Objective 5: Develop a system of on-call attorneys to handle urgent appointments when necessary unless 
due to exigent circumstances or good cause, a judge designates an attorney from the approved list 
pursuant to Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 26.04, notifies Contractor of the appointment. 

Objective 6: Develop a system of panels where attorneys are matched with cases based upon 
qualification, experience, and training.  

Objective 7: Monitor compliance by assigned defense counsel with the requirement related to initial 
contact with the client, conducting the initial interview with the client.  

Objective 8: Establish and monitor compliance with caseload limits for all panel attorneys to ensure 
adequate availability for all matters. 

Objective 9: Implement and monitor a policy to ensure that any attorney appointed pursuant to this 
program does not accept appointments in any case that involves a conflict of interest for the attorney 
unless the conflict has been waived by all affected clients. 

Objective 10: Implement quality standards for appointed investigators and experts and employ a full time 
investigator to review requests for investigators and full-time attorneys to review requests for expert 
assistance and make a determination on those requests.  

Objective 11: Review and approve fee requests by counsel, investigators and experts. 

Objective 12: Conduct a survey of Judges to determine their opinion of the quality of representation by 
attorneys being provided through this program - by October 1 each year beginning in October, 2015. 

Objective 13: Present and review the monthly report of indigent defense funds prepared by Court 
Administration with the Oversight Committee.   

Objective 14: Produce an annual statistical report of activities in collaboration with Court Administration 
for submission to the Travis County Judiciary and Commissioners Court - by March 1 each year 
beginning in March, 2016. 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 34 
 

 Methodology or Project Design (Activities) 

If practicable, Contractor shall perform the following activities by the following deadlines stated 
in the TIDC grant contract: 

1. Make every attempt to hire an attorney director who meets at least the minimum qualifications for that 
position to begin employment on or about October 1, 2014. 

2. Instruct the Director to develop a written plan of operation including the information required in 
Article 26.047 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and any other requirements listed in the contract 
with Travis County by November 1, 2014. 

3. Instruct the Director to make every attempt to hire the staff needed so that they can begin employment 
on or about November 1, 2014. 

4. Begin operation on or before January 5, 2015 and provide quality defense services in cases as needed. 

5. Provide annual statistical reports detailing information from the plan of operation and other 
requirements listed in this contract by March 1, each year beginning in March, 2016. 

6. Provide performance reports to County related the discretionary grant quarterly, as requested by 
County. 
 

 Evaluation 

Contractor acknowledges that the following tasks and measures stated in the TIDC grant 
contract are the basis on which the performance of this Program contract will be evaluated and that 
grant funding for subsequent years depends on this evaluation.  Contractor understands that its 
cooperation in timely completion of these tasks and reporting information related to the measures is 
essential:  

 

 Task Definition Measure 
Job Descriptions 
Completed 

Job descriptions for each  
position in the office will  
be developed. 

Report date completed 

Staff Hired Director,  
Assistant Director,  
Supervising Attorney,  
Full Time Administrative Assistant, 
Investigator and  
Part-time  Financial Analyst 

Report indicating when 
each position is filled 

Director Start Date This position will set up the office. Report the date employee 
is added to payroll  

Software Setup Set up case management and 
monitoring system.  

Date software is 
functional. 

Staff Start Date 

 

Assistant Director, Supervising 
Attorney,  
Full Time Administrative Assistant, 
Investigator, and  
Part-time Financial Analyst  

Report indicating the date 
each employee is added to 
payroll 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 35 
 

Policies and Procedures 
Complete and  

Training Provided to Staff 

A policy and procedure manual to 
identify basic office procedures, how 
office will function and various staff 
roles. 

Date manual distributed to 
staff and staff trained. 

Commence Representation 
by program 

Develop referral process from courts.  
Assist courts with submission of 
amendments to indigent defense 
plans if necessary. 

Date that all plans are 
updated as necessary or 
contact made with the 
courts. 

Begin Serving Defendants. Office receives referral.  Report the date first case 
is received from court or 
Court Administration. 

Outputs 

  Task Definition Measure 
Department Caseload The number of active cases assigned 

to the Program on the last business 
day of each month. 

Monthly report detailing 
the department caseload. 

Department Cases 
Disposed 

The total number of cases disposed 
during each month 

Monthly report detailing 
the number of disposed 
cases 

Average Caseload 
Summary 

Total number of cases referred 
divided by total number of Program 
attorneys 

Report average caseload 
for all attorneys by month. 

Individual Attorney 
Caseload 

The number of cases assigned to 
each attorney by the Program on the 
last business day of each month. 

Report the number of cases 
assigned for all attorneys. 

Average Cost per Case by 
Program 

The attorney fees paid divided by the 
number of cases disposed annually 

Report the average cost per 
case by year 

Percent of Cases Receiving 
Appointed Counsel 

Number of cases appointed divided 
by total cases assigned to the 
criminal courts 

Report the number of 
appointed cases divided by 
the total cases 

Percentage of Bench 
Appointments Made 

Bench appointments divided by total 
number of appointments 

Report bench 
appointments by court 

Outcomes 

Task Definition Measure 
Days from Appointment to 
First Contact with 
Defendant 

The number of days from the date 
the order of appointment is received 
until a contact is made with the 
defendant. 

Report the average 
number of days between 
receipt of the order of 
appointment to the 
contact with defendant. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 36 
 

Report the number of 
cases where the initial 
contact is made more 
than 1 working day after 
the order of appointment 
is received. 

Days from Appointment to 
Initial Interview Contact 
with Defendant (in jail 
only) 

The number of days from the date 
the order of appointment is received 
until the initial interview is made 
with the defendant in jail. 

Report the average number 
of days between receipt of 
the order of appointment to 
the initial interview with 
incarcerated defendant. 
  
Report the number of 
cases where the initial 
interview is made more 
than 5 days after the order 
of appointment is received 
in a misdemeanor case and 
more than 10 days after the 
order of appointment is 
received in a felony case. 
 

Days to Disposition (in 
jail) 

The number of days from arrest to 
disposition for inmates that remain 
in jail continuously. 

Report the average number 
of days between arrest of 
the case to the disposition 
of the case. 

Days from Arrest to 
Release 

The number of days from the arrest 
to the release from jail on bond, 
while the case is pending. 

Report the average number 
of days that the inmate is 
in jail until released on 
bond. 

Type of Disposition of 
Cases 

The type of disposition (dismissal, 
guilty plea or Jury/Bench 
trial/12:45's) in each case assigned to 
the Program 

  

Report the number of: 
 1)Dismissals 
 2) Guilty Pleas pursuant to 
a plea agreement 
 3) Jury/Bench Trials on  
Guilt/Innocence and 
Punishment 
 4) 12:45's 
 

Type of Convictions The type of conviction handed down 
in each case (if found guilty) 

Report the number of cases 
where a defendant was 
convicted. 
  
Report the number of 
cases where a defendant 
was convicted of a lesser 
offense. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 37 
 

Acquittals Cases assigned to the Program 
where the jury/court finds the 
defendant not guilty at 
guilt/innocence 

Report the number of 
cases where a defendant 
was found not guilty of 
any offense. 
  

Sentence Severity The length of sentence handed down 
by case type (excluding capital) 

Report the average 
sentence length by case 
type for convictions  

Survey of Stakeholders Create a simple survey to be given to 
Judges.  The survey should be 
conducted at the beginning of the 
grant period prior to services and 
annually thereafter.  The survey 
should address the overall 
impressions of the quality of mental 
health indigent defense services 
from the office and from the private 
bar, as well as the impacts of such a 
case. 

Create a user survey to be distributed 
to clients of the office to gauge the 
overall satisfaction with 
representation. 

 Judicial Trial Survey 

Report any change 
between the pretest and 
post-test, as well as annual 
changes. 

 Report level of client 
satisfaction with office 
representation. 

 Report judicial 
satisfaction following jury 
trials regarding Program 
representation 

  

Type of Bonds The number of cases receiving each 
bond type divided by total appointed  
cases  

Report the percent of cases 
receiving bonds by bond 
type (surety, personal, 
cash) 

Use of Investigators The total number of cases utilizing 
an investigator dived by the total 
number of cases.   

Report the percentage of 
cases where an investigator 
was utilized 

Use of Experts The total number of cases utilizing 
an expert divided by the total 
number of cases.   

Report the percentage of 
cases where an expert was 
utilized 

Timely Filings of Appellate 
Briefs 

The total number briefs filed on time 
divided by total briefs filed 

Report the percentage of 
briefs filed timely  

 

 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 38 
 

EXHIBIT 5 TO ATTACHMENT A 
Reporting Tables 

The following tables represent necessary information to be reported and captured by both County and 
Contractor for 1) successful data collection for Program analysis; and 2) satisfaction of reporting 
requirements by TIDC.    
 

Certifications
Each quarter (by month), the 
Program Director in 
collaboration with the Project 
Manager certifies the 
following is documented for 
all cases served by the 
Program and is available for 
review: 

Arrest Date 
Bond Date 
Appointment Date 
Initial Contact by Attorney 
Initial Interview by Attorney 
Case Filing Date 
Disposition Date 
Disposition Type 
Policies and Procedures have been adopted and are reviewed 
regularly and updated as needed 

 
Training & Education

Each quarter (by month), the 
Program Director/Chief 
Defender shall report the 
following training and 
education provided by 
Contractor and number of 
attorneys attending: 

Total number of criminal law and mental health law continuing 
legal education (CLE) hours provided by Contractor and total 
number of these hours completed by attorneys. 
The number of attorneys that submit CLE hours each month. 
The number of CLE trainings conducted by Contractor’s staff 
Training Events and Attorney CLE Submission 

List of attorneys who have notified Contractor that they are not 
in compliance with CLE requirements of State Bar 
List of attorneys who have notified Contractor that they are not 
in compliance with CLE requirements of the Travis County Fair 
Defense Plan 

 
Mentoring Program 

Each quarter (by month), the 
Executive Director shall report 
the following mentoring 
assistance  provided by 
Contractor and number of 
attorneys participating: 

Date mentoring program is implemented  
Date mentoring policy is completed  
The number of experienced attorneys who volunteer to assist 
assigned attorneys 
The number of hours experienced attorneys report having spent  
mentoring assigned attorneys  
The number of assigned attorneys requesting mentoring or 
other assistance  
The number of assigned attorneys reporting having received 
mentoring or other assistance
Types of mentoring assistance received: instruction, coaching, 
resource sharing, network sharing, encouragement. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 39 
 

 
Workload & Caseload Measures

Each quarter (by month), the 
Program Director in 
collaboration with the Project 
Manager shall report the 
following workload/caseload 
measures: 

Number of felony appointments each month. 
Number of misdemeanor appointments each month. 
Length of time on each Case between appointment and 
disposition of case 
Number of felony Cases that were disposed during the month. 
Number of misdemeanor Cases that were disposed during the 
month. 
Name of each attorney on the Appointment List and their 
individual pending caseload distribution from Program at the 
end of each month. 
Name of each attorney on the Appointment and their number of 
new Program (opened) appointments and their number of 
Program Cases disposed (closed) during the month. 

 
Summaries

Each quarter, the Program 
Director/Chief Defender shall 
summarize any or all of the 
following: 

Accomplishments the staff and Program made during the 
quarter. 
Identify problems encountered, solutions or proposed solutions 
made. 
Any activities scheduled during the next reporting period. 
Staff changes made during the quarter, including new hires, 
classification of new hires, and/or the date any staff left the 
Program. 

 
Financial Data Re: Costs for Representation  

Each quarter, the Program 
Director in collaboration with 
the Project Manager shall 
provide the following 
financial data by Court: 

Total amount of payments made to attorneys for 
representation in felony cases during the month.   
Total amount of payments made for investigator expenses in 
felony cases during the month. 
Total amount of payments made for expert witnesses in 
felony cases during the month. 
Total amount of any “other expenses” made during the month 
for services provided in felony cases during the month. 
Total amount of payments made to attorneys for 
representation in misdemeanor cases during the month.   
Total amount of payments made for investigator expenses in 
misdemeanor cases during the month. 
Total amount of payments made for expert witnesses in 
misdemeanor cases during the month. 
Total amount of any “other expenses” made during the month 
for services provided in misdemeanor cases during the month. 

  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 40 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

REIMBURSEMENT REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITS; FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
 
1.0  SERVICES 
 

1.1 Compensation.  For and in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the 
Services described in Attachment A and this Contract, Travis County shall pay 
Contractor compensation based on expenses incurred to render the Services through the 
reimbursement of those expenses that are in compliance with the budget in Exhibit 1 of 
Attachment A.   

 
1.2 Adjustments to Budget.  Contractor shall not make any adjustments to its Budget that will 

have the effect of increasing total salary expenses in subsequent contract years.  If 
necessary to comply with the terms of this Contract, Contractor by resolution of its Board 
of Directors may transfer up to a cumulative total of $10,000 during any one contract 
year from  
1.2.1  One function within operating expenses to another function in operating expense, 

or  
1.2.2  Salary for one position to another position if, after the transfer, the budget 

remaining for the first position remains adequate to cover the total salary expense 
for that position for the portion of the contract year during which that position is 
filled, or 

1.2.3 Salary expenses to one or more functions in operating expenses if, after the 
transfer, the budget remaining for salary expenses remains adequate to cover the 
total salary expense for the portion of the contract year during which all position 
are filled, or 

1.2.4 Fringe benefits to one or more functions in operating expenses if, after the 
transfer, the budget remaining for fringe benefits remains adequate to cover the 
total fringe benefits due for all positions for the portion of the contract year during 
which these positions are filled, or      

1.2.5 Taxes to one or more functions in operating expenses if, after the transfer, the 
budget remaining for taxes remains adequate to cover the total taxes due for all 
positions for the portion of the contract year during which these positions are 
filled. 

If Contractor’s Board of Directors approves any adjustments to the budget, Contractor 
shall notify the Project Manager and the County Auditor of the adjustment within ten (10) 
business days.  If Contractor needs or desires one or more budget adjustments in excess 
of the cumulative total of $10,000, prior to making any further adjustments Contractor 
must submit a request to the Project Manager for consideration and, if appropriate, for 
further submission of the request to TIDC for its consideration.  
 

1.3 Limit on Total Compensation.  Travis County shall not be obligated to pay any amounts 
in excess of the budgeted amounts.  County shall not be liable to Contractor for more 
than a maximum total amount of $769,894 for expenditures between October 1, 2014 and 
September 30, 2015.  County shall not be liable to Contractor for any expenditures for 
expenses incurred before October 1, 2014 or after September 30, 2015, unless this 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 41 
 

Contract is modified to extend its duration and specifically provides for additional 
funding for any extension.  

 
1.3  Methodology.  To address the cash flow needs of Contractor, County shall fund an 

Escrow Account to facilitate the payment of expenses as incurred and allow for fiscal 
control of the Program as the means of compensating Contractor.  Compensation is based 
upon the negotiated budget for the current term of this Contract.  Upon Contractor’s 
submission of reimbursement requests, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation as set 
forth below.        

 
2.0 ESCROW ACCOUNT 
 
 2.1  “Escrow Account” means the imprest or self-checking account which has been established 

by and is used by Contractor, as a fiduciary, solely for payment of  expenses within the 
approved budget and necessary to provide the Services under this Contract that are incurred 
by Contractor.  Upon completion of Services, or at the end of each annual term, Contractor 
must give an accounting of the funds received and disbursements incurred no later than 
October 15 for the preceding 12 month period ending September 30.  Contractor shall return 
the difference between all funds received and those used for the stated purpose to County at 
the end of the Contract year.   

 
 2.2  Contractor shall establish and maintain an Escrow Account for payment of the expenses it 

incurs while administering the Program, including salaries and benefits for its employees 
and administrative and overhead costs allowed under the Budget in Exhibit 1 to Attachment 
A as adjusted in compliance with this Contract.  In determining whether an expense is 
allowed, Contractor shall apply the standards and requirements for local governments in the 
Uniform Grant Management Standards promulgated by the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts.   Contractor shall not use the principal in the Escrow Account to pay for anything 
other than the eligible expenses allowed under the Budget in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A as 
adjusted in compliance with this Contract and the Uniform Grant Management Standards.  
The funds in the Escrow Account are held by Contractor as a fiduciary on behalf of County 
and shall not be used, taken as an off-set, converted, or comingled with any other funds.  
Contractor may direct the Bank to withdraw funds from the Escrow Account to fund the 
non-draft payments as they are issued.  The withdrawals for Contractor’s allowed expenses 
are paid for from the amount in the Escrow Account.  Contractor shall make reimbursement 
requests for all expenditures from the Escrow Account in compliance with section 4 of this 
Attachment B.  Contractor shall pay all banking fees or charges incurred in connection with 
the Escrow Account and shall retain all income or other benefits that the funds in the Escrow 
Account may earn.  Payments from the Escrow Account shall be made in accordance with 
this Contract.   

 
 2.3  County shall fund the Escrow Account at the beginning of the Contract in the amount of 

$137,314.  During the first ten months of the Contract year when Contractor submits 
monthly requests for reimbursement with appropriate supporting documentation, County 
shall reimburse these expenses so that the Escrow Account remains at an amount which is 
equal to approximately two (2) months of estimated expenses based upon the budgeted and 
actual expected salary requirements and monthly expenses in the amount of approximately 
$126,514 as articulated in the Budget in Exhibit 1 to Attachment A.  During the last two 
months of the Contract year, Contractor shall continue to submit reimbursement requests to 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 42 
 

County for all expenses incurred and paid during that period.  Due to the initial funding of 
the Escrow Account, County does not reimburse these expenses so that the funds in the 
Escrow Account are reduced to as near to zero as possible at the end of the Contract year. If 
Contractor anticipates that additional funds are needed to pay for an extraordinary expense 
in a particular month or learns that County has not provided amounts sufficient to cover 
Escrow Account withdrawals during the first ten months, Contractor shall notify Project 
Manager of the additional amount needed and County shall determine whether additional 
funding is appropriate and, if so, fund the Escrow Account for an additional amount within 
fifteen (15) Working Days of receipt of the notification. 

 
 2.4  Contractor acknowledges that County is only responsible for costs incurred within its 

approved budget.  County acknowledges that the Program relies upon County for providing 
funds for payment of its budgeted costs, including salaries.  County only assumes financial 
responsibility for expenses anticipated by the budget incorporated in this Contract and its 
TIDC grant contract.  Contractor shall make the initial payment for all salaries and allowed 
expenses and send County a reimbursement request at least monthly, that indicates the 
amounts and purpose of payments made for which reimbursement is requested.  County 
shall refund the Escrow Account for all payments made by Contractor in compliance with 
the budget incorporated in this Contract and the TIDC grant within thirty (30) Days of 
receipt of a reimbursement request.  County shall immediately notify Contractor if County 
does not agree that a payment was made in compliance with this Contract. 

 
 2.5   The Escrow Account shall be subject to a full accounting by the Travis County Auditor for 

the uses made of all funds deposited in the Escrow Account.  Contractor shall make interim 
reports at least biannually and a final accounting for each year of the Contract no later than 
October 15th at the end of the year.  Contractor is obligated to return to County the 
difference between all funds received and those expenditures used for the stated purpose and 
approved by County.  No later than October 15 after the end of this Contract, Contractor 
shall prepare a reconciliation report that: 

 
  2.5.1 addresses the following information: 
 

2.5.1.1 the total amount of funding for the Escrow Account, including the initial 
funding and all reimbursements, provided to Contractor during the prior 
twelve month period from October 1 to September 30 of the current year;  

 
2.5.1.2  the total amount of expenditures made by Contractor from the Escrow 

Account during the prior twelve month period from October 1 to September 
30 of the current year, summarized by categories stated in the Budget in 
Exhibit 1 to Attachment A as adjusted in compliance with the Contract ;  

 
2.5.1.3  the difference between these total amounts of funding and expenditures; 
 
2.5.1.4  the total amount of any outstanding checks for expenditures made by 

Contractor and the purpose and payees on these checks;  
 
2.5.1.4  the amount of funds remaining in the Escrow Account, and readily available 

for repayment to County with documentation supporting this amount   
(“remaining escrow funds”). 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 43 
 

 
2.6  Contractor shall repay County the difference between the remaining escrow funds and the 

outstanding checks no later than the November 1st following the end of this Contract.  
 
2.7  Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to cooperate fully with the replacement provider 

and County to assist with and ensure a smooth transition. 
 
 3.0 ABANDONED PROPERTY   
 

 Throughout the duration of the Contract, Contractor is responsible for complying with all applicable 
abandoned property or escheat laws, making any required payments, and filing any required reports.  
Contractor determines whether to file and, if appropriate, is responsible for making reports once notified. 
 
4.0  REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST REQUIREMENTS 
 

4.1 Monthly Reimbursement Requests.  Contractor shall submit Escrow Expense 
Reimbursement Requests to County by the 5th business day after the end of each month.  
Contractor shall use the appropriate Travis County forms in Exhibit 1 to Attachment B. 

  
4.2  Content of Reimbursement Requests.   Contractor shall include at least the following 

information in its Escrow expense reimbursement requests:   
 

4.2.1 Name, address, and telephone number of Contractor ;  
4.2.2 County Contract number;  
4.2.3 Identification of types of expenditure by budget categories: salary, benefits,  

supplies, etc.;  
4.2.4 Amount of expenditure applicable to each budget category;  
4.2.5 Total amount due;  
4.2.6 Appropriate supporting documentation which may include ledgers, purchase 

orders, travel records, invoices, contracts, mileage records, telephone bills, time 
sheets or other payroll documentation, and any other documentation that verifies the 
amount and appropriateness of the expenditure; and  

4.2.7 Any additional information required by the Contract. 
 
 4.3 Rules for Supporting Documentation.  The supporting documentation must comply with the 

authority and rules applicable to any grant funding from TIDC and with which County 
must comply in its contractual relationship with TIDC related to the funding for this 
Contract.  These rules are stated in the following documents (collectively called the 
“grant accounting rules”):    

 
4.3.1 Texas Government Code, Chapters 79 & 783 
4.3.2 Texas Administrative Code Title 1, Chapter 173  
4.3.3 Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS) as promulgated by the Texas 

Comptroller of Public Accounts, and  
4.3.4 Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 26.047. 

 
4.4 Contractor shall obtain and retain all supporting documentation required by the grant 

accounting rules for at least seven years after the date reimbursement is requested. 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 44 
 

4.5 Specific Supporting Documentation for Reimbursement.  More specifically, Contractor 
shall include copies of invoices for all non-payroll expenditures in its monthly Escrow 
Account reimbursement request.  In addition, Contractor shall include copies of summary 
payroll records, such as accounting ledgers, which detail the names of the persons to 
whom wages were paid, the total salary, the amount and purpose of any deductions, the 
costs of benefits by type, and any other pertinent payroll information.  Contractor shall 
attach to each reimbursement request the attestation by each of its employees that all time 
for which the employee was paid during that period was spent performing work related to 
the Services to be provided under this Contract in compliance with the applicable state 
grant rules.    

 
 4.6 Additional Specific Supporting Documentation.  Contractor acknowledges that all 

technology equipment and software must be purchased from the Texas Department Of 
Information Resources (DIR) State Contract unless Contractor demonstrates good reason 
why the state contract cannot be used and provides County with a written request for an 
exception to this requirement and, after submission of the request to TIDC, County receives 
a written statement from TIDC allowing the exception.  Contractor acknowledges that 
County is initially funding the Escrow Account with $10,800 more than required for 
maintenance level established in this Attachment.  Contractor also acknowledges that this 
amount represents the annual budget for purchase of telephones, insurance and 
accounting/audit/tax fees for which no reimbursement is due.  Contractor shall submit 
supporting documentation for any expenditures related to these budget categories to County 
at the end of the month in which the expenditure is made.      

 
4.7  Contractor shall submit its reimbursement requests to the following address: 

 
   Project Manager  
   P.O. Box 1748 

     Austin, Texas 78767 
 
 
5.0   CAPITAL/EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES 

 
5.1 County shall provide: 
  

5.1.1 the furniture selected by Contractor from contracts currently used by County for 
procuring this type of equipment, the total cost of which shall not exceed $10,000, 
and necessary to the functioning of the Program; and 

5.1.2 the computer and office equipment selected by Contractor from contracts 
currently used by County for procuring this type of equipment, the total cost of 
which shall not exceed $17,015, and necessary to the functioning of the Program.  

 
5.2 Contractor acknowledges that all technology equipment, including telephone equipment, 

and software to be purchased by County must be purchased from the DIR State Contract 
unless Contractor demonstrates good reason why the state contract cannot be used and 
provides County with a written request for an exception to this requirement and, after 
submission of the request to TIDC, County receives a written statement from TIDC 
allowing the exception.  For approval of an exception, Contractor should include 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 45 
 

information regarding how the proposed alternative technology meets standards adopted by 
the DIR and the Judicial Committee on Information technology.  In addition, Contractor 
acknowledges that all technology equipment and software to be purchased with contract 
funds under this contract must include maintenance to ensure it operates as intended during 
the full term of the contract and the term of the maintenance agreement must be at least 
three (3) years and not more than five (5) years.   
 

5.3 This furniture and equipment remains the property of County and must be returned to 
County at the termination of this Contract.   
 

5.4 Contractor shall purchase any telephone equipment, the total cost of which shall not 
exceed $1,800, necessary to the functioning of the Program in compliance with the 
County Purchasing Act. 

 
5.5 Contractor shall make all purchases for supplies, services and materials necessary to the 

functioning of the Program in compliance with the County Purchasing Act and the TIDC 
grant requirements. 

 
 
6.0  NO UNANTICIPATED REIMBURSEABLE EXPENSES 

 
All costs related to the implementation of the Program have been anticipated by both parties before the 
execution of this Contract and have been provided to TIDC in order to receive grant funding.  No additional 
amount will be allowed. 
 
7.0  FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Contractor shall provide County all financial data that County needs to complete the 
quarterly on-line progress report that must be submitted to TIDC.  Contractor shall 
provide financial reports monthly, quarterly, bi-annually and annually to the Project 
Manager. 

 
7.2 The monthly reimbursement requests submitted by Contractor are the only financial 

reports required monthly.  
 
7.3 If County requires any financial information that is not included in Contractor’s 

reimbursement requests to complete the quarterly on-line progress report that must be 
submitted to TIDC and requests that information from Contractor, Contractor shall 
provide that information to the County Auditor no later than the 12th day of the month in 
which the quarterly report is due.  

 
7.4 Contractor shall submit the interim biannual report on the state of the Escrow Account as 

required by section 2.5 of this Attachment to the Project Manager no later than April 15th 
of each year.  Contractor shall submit the final annual report on the state of the Escrow 
Account as required by section 2.5 of this Attachment to the Project Manager no later 
than October 15th of each year.    

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 46 
 

 
7.5 Contractor shall submit cumulative financial data in the annual report described in section 

6 of Attachment A.   
 

 
8.0  PARTIAL PAYMENT ON TERMINATION 
Payment on Termination.  If this Contract is terminated, Contractor is entitled only to reimbursement 
compensation based on the expenses incurred within the budget prorated for the applicable duration of 
the Contract and for Services which have already been performed before and up to the date of 
termination.   
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 47 
 

EXHIBIT 1 TO ATTACHMENT B 

Travis County Financial Forms 
 

 ACH FORM(S) 
 

Exhibit 1.1 

Agreement for Direct 
Deposit.pdf

 
 

Exhibit 1.2 

Agreement to Cancel 
Direct Deposit.pdf

 
 

ESCROW EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

Attachment - 
Financial Forms UNPRO

 

 

Exhibit 1.3 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR PERSONNEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

 

EXHIBIT 1.4  

Example of an Activity 
Log.pdf

 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 48 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1.5 

SAMPLE SALARY CERTIFICATION 

(To be prepared on Contractor’s Letterhead) 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: _____________, 2014 

 

TO:  Nicki Riley 
County Auditor  

CC: (Name of analyst for this grant)  
Financial Analyst—Grants 

 
 
FROM: __________(signature)____________________ 

Typed Name of Executive Director of CAPDS 
Director, Capital Area Private Defender Services 

 
SUBJECT: Verfication of Hours Worked for Employee of Capital Area Private Defender Services 

County Grant Number:____________________ 
Certification Period:  (start date of pay period) – (end date of pay period)   
 

 
This memorandum is to certify that ______(name of employee) __________ spent 100% of her work 
time on activities for Capital Area Private Defender Services during the Certification Period stated 
above. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 49 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 

 

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to 
obtain a contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion.  Each covered 
contractor must also screen each of its covered subcontractors. 
 
In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract. 
 
By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms: 
 
1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into.  

If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the 
potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and 
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of 
federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549.   

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not 
knowingly enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable. 

 
Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract?  ____YES   ____NO 

 
5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts” without modification, in all covered 
subcontracts; and in solicitations for all covered subcontracts. 

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.  A contractor must at a minimum, obtain 
certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this certification document.  The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed 
that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.  

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered 
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available 
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR 
COVERED CONTRACTS 
 
Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

 
The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by 

any federal department or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 
 
The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this certification.  In this instance, the 

contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification.  Attach 
the explanation(s) to this certification. 
 
Name of Contractor    Vendor I.D. or Social Security No. 
 
       
 
 
 
Signature of Authorized Representative       Date  Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 50 
 

ATTACHMENT D 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

 
 ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
 
Date:          
Name of Affiant:         
Title of Affiant:          
Business Name of Contractor:        
County of Contractor:         
 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 
 
1. Affiant is authorized by Contractor to make this affidavit for Contractor.   
 
2.  Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.  
 
3. Affiant can read the English language.  
 
4. Contractor has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Contract which is attached to this 

affidavit as Exhibit 1.  
 
5.  Affiant has personally read Exhibit 1 to this Affidavit.  
 
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit 1 with whom Contractor  is doing business or 

has done business during the 365-Day period immediately before the date of this affidavit.  
             

Signature of Affiant 
             

Address 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by    on  , 20__.  
 

                                         
    

Notary Public, State of ____________ 
      

Typed or printed name of notary 
My commission expires:     

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 51 
 

EXHIBIT 1 TO ATTACHMENT D 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

May 23, 2014 
 
 
 Name of Individual Name of Business 
Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated 
 
County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe  
Executive Assistant  Cheryl Brown 
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez 
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala 
Executive Assistant David Salazar 
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis 
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital 
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite 
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez 
Executive Assistant Sue Spears 
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd* 
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant 
Executive Assistant  Sara Krause* 
Executive Assistant  Joe Hon 
Executive Assistant  Peter Einhorn 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty* 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charlyn Daugherty Consultant 
Executive Assistant Bob Moore* 
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow* 
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner* 
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gómez 
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida 
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra 
County Tax Assessor-Collector Bruce Elfant* 
Chief Deputy Tax Assessor-Collector Dusty Knight 
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter  
County Auditor  Nicki Riley 
County Executive, Administrative Vacant 
Interim County Executive, P & B Leroy Nellis*  
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby 
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.   
County Executive,  Justice & Public Safety,  Roger Jefferies 
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.  
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo 
Director, Records Mg’t & Communications Steven Broberg 
Travis County Attorney  David Escamilla 
First Assistant County Attorney  Steve Capelle 
Executive Assistant, Civil Division James Collins 
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols 
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe 
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore 
Director, Transactions Division  John Hille 
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 52 
 

 Name of Individual Name of Business 
Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated   
 
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn  
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt  
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson 
Attorney, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber* 
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge 
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson 
County Court at Law #3 Judge John Lipscombe 
County Court at Law #4 Judge Mike Denton 
County Court at Law #5 Judge Nancy Hohengarten 
County Court at Law #6 Judge Brandy Mueller 
County Court at Law #7 Judge Elisabeth Earle 
County Court at Law #8 Judge Carlos Barrera 
147th District Court Judge Cliff Brown 
167th District Court Judge David Wahlberg 
299th District Court Judge Karen Sage 
331st District Court Judge David Crain 
390th District Court Judge Julie Kocurek 
403rd District Court Judge Brenda Kennedy 
427th District Court Judge Jim Coronado 
Magistrate Court Magistrate Judge Leon Grizzard 
Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB 
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 
Assistant Purchasing Agent Elaine Casas* 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry  
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villarreal 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB  
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Michael Long, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rebecca Gardner   
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino* 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback* 
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant 
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 53 
 

 Name of Individual Name of Business 
Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual Associated 
 
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis 
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez 
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa 
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero 
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington 
Purchasing Business Analyst Vacant 
 
 

 

FORMER EMPLOYEES 

       
 Name of Individual 
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration   
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/31/14 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14 
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14 
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/14 
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/14 
County Executive P&B Leslie Browder 03/31/15 
 
* Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 
 

  
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



             
 

 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By:  Paul Scoggins, Engineering Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager:   Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range Planning 

 
Department Head:  Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 
       
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 
authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two five foot wide public utility 
easements located along the common lot line of Lots 5 and 6, Block C of Aqua 
Monte – Precinct Three.   
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:   
TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate 
two five foot wide public utility easements (PUEs) located along the common lot line 
of Lots 5 and 6, Block C of Aqua Monte.  The easements are shown schematically 
on the plat.  Lots 5 and 6 front on Heathcliff Drive, a street not maintained by Travis 
County.  
 
The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 
vacating the subject easements.  Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 
The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 
vacating the subject easements.  Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 
meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 
inquiries in regards to this request.  As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   
According to the request letter the owner would like to construct a house and its 
onsite septic system on Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block C of the Aqua Monte subdivision.  
Vacating the easements between Lots 5 and 6 should resolve any potential 
encroachment issues.  There are not any dedicated easements between Lots 4 and 
5. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
None. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 9Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation  
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:   
 
Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR - Development 
Services 

(512) 854-7561 

                        
                        
                        
 
CC:    
Stacey Scheffel Program Manager TNR-Permits (512) 854-7565 
                        
                        
                        
 
SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services  Long Range Planning - Aqua Monte 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 10Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 11Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 12Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 13Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, Agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/ 854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider And Take Appropriate Action To Approve A Facilities Use Agreement 
With The Austin Independent School District (AISD) For After-School Enrichment 
Services Provided by Travis County 4-H Capital. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached memo and backup 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
See attached memo and backup 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
See attached memo and backup 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
See attached fiscal impact statement 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leroy Nellis, Interim County Executive – Planning and Budget Office 
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 
Cyd Grimes, CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, CPA, Travis County Auditor 
Aerin Toussaint, Budget Analyst I, Planning and Budget 
Dolores Sandmann, Director, Texas AgriLife Travis County 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive - HHS 
Kathleen Haas, Financial Manager 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 14Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 16Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 17Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 18Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 21Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    September 16, 2014    
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Rebecca Riojas  
      512-854-1323 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Gary Cobb 
 Assistant District Attorney 
 Director, Grand Jury Division 
 Travis County District Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON A REQUEST FROM THE DISTRICT 
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO USE THE COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM AT 700 LAVACA ON FRIDAY, 
NOVEMBER 7, 2014 FROM 1:00 TO 4:00 P.M. TO CONDUCT CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: Office 
of the District Attorney in collaboration with the Center for Child Protection will present 
on HIPAA as a lead topic during CLE. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval of this request for 
continued legal education. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: Provide collective training for District, County 
and Municipal prosecutors. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: No fiscal impact related to this 
request.  County budget will not be effected. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Request to Commissioners Court 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 22Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 23Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 24Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Susan Bell 49587 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
Consider and take appropriate action to approve the annual written plan for the 0108 
Records Management Preservation Fund and 0129 County Clerk’s Records Archival 
Fund 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Attached 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
John Hille, County Attorney  49415 
 
For information purposes: 
Alan Miller, Planning and Budget  49726 
Steven Broberg, RMCR  49575 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 25Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Dana DeBeauvoir  Travis County Clerk 
PO Box 149325, Austin TX 78714-9325  |  Phone: (512) 854-9188  |  Website: www.traviscountyclerk.org 

 
 

FY15 Plan for Use of the County Clerk’s 
Records Management and Preservation Fund 0108 

and Records Archive Fund 0129 
 
The Records Management and Preservation Fund, outlined in Section 118.0216 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, is for, “the records management and preservation services performed 
by the county clerk after the filing and recording of a document in the records of the office of 
the clerk.”  This section also states, “the county clerk shall prepare an annual written plan for 
funding the automation projects and records management and preservation services performed 
by the clerk.”  
 
The County Clerk’s Records Archive Fund, outlined in 118.025 of the Local Government Code, 
states that the fee for "Records Archive" under Section 118.011(f) is for, “the preservation and 
restoration services performed by the county clerk in connection with maintaining a county 
clerk's records archive.”  This section states, “the county clerk shall prepare an annual written 
plan for funding the preservation and restoration of the county clerk’s records archive.” 
 
This document serves as the written plan for both of these funds. 
 
Long Term Plan for the Use of these Funds 
The Travis County Clerk’s library of permanent real property records dates prior to 1836 and 
contains over 30,000,000 pages of documents.  There are three important categories of these 
documents: 
 

April 1999 – present Documents are electronically imaged and have a computerized 
index. 

1987 – 1999 Documents are microfilmed and have a computerized index. 
1836 – 1987 Documents are microfilmed and have microfilmed copies of 

handwritten indexes. 
 

Our primary goals are to use these funds to: 
 

• Provide and maintain systems for managing the receiving, filing, storage, retrieval, and 
public access of records in the Clerk’s Office 
This includes projects to acquire, implement, manage, update, and replace systems that 
handle paper, microfilm, and electronic records.   

• Improve public access to County Clerk records 
This enhances the public’s ability to locate the records they are seeking by building 
advanced databases and improving internet access to information. 

• Provide appropriate physical and electronic storage sites for libraries with the ability 
to retrieve information as needed 
This includes maintaining physical storage sites for paper, microfilm, and electronic 
medium as well as electronic storage of data and back-up systems. 

  

Recording, Elections, Computer Resources, Accounting, and Administration Divisions  
5501 Airport Boulevard, Austin, Texas 78751-1410 

Misdemeanor Records, Civil/Probate/Commissioners Court Minutes, and Records Management Divisions 
1000 Guadalupe, Austin, Texas 78701-2328 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 

 
• Reduce the use of paper documents filed in our Recording, Civil/Probate, and 

Misdemeanor Divisions  
This is accomplished by improving our ability to electronically accept newly filed 
documents and convert existing paper and microfilm records to electronic records.  

• Remove personal identifiers from documents before they are made available on the 
internet 
Redaction of certain personal information such as Social Security and bank account 
numbers is done to help protect individuals from identity theft.  

• Digitize existing County Clerk records and redact personal identifiers 
Digitizing paper and microfilm records increases protection of documents from disaster, 
dramatically increases the ability to track and locate documents, provides a clearer 
more readable image of documents, and greatly improves efficiency for the retrieval of 
documents by the public.   

• Make certain that appropriate disaster recovery and business resumption systems are 
in place 
Ensuring that a detailed structure is in place to prevent loss of these records in the event 
of a disaster is directly associated with protecting the archive and therefore, related to 
the primary intent of this legislation. 

• Apply special preservation methods to documents of significant historic value 
Modern preservation techniques should be applied to paper documents that merit 
special consideration, such as Sam Houston’s will.   

• Support personnel necessary to support these goals. 
This allows us to provide salaries, benefits, training, space, and equipment for 
individuals charged with managing these priorities. 
 

FY15 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 0108 RECORDS MANAGEMENT FUND 
 

Personnel $  776,736 
 

Office Equipment and Supplies 194,480 
 

Maintenance Agreements 205,000 
 

Training and Seminars 70,000 
 

Computer Equipment Purchases 52,570 
 
Recording Software Replacement 800,000 
 

Facility Changes  140,148 
These changes will provide work space for employees performing records 
management activities and secured areas for storing equipment and supplies 
associated with records management activities. 

 

Estimated Reserves 1,382,114 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds 

may be used for items such as additional temporary personnel 
resources, equipment, or professional services necessary for records 
management projects; replacement computer equipment; or a 
supplement to salaries following actions such as performance based pay 
increases, reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

  TOTAL $3,621,048 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
 

FY15 PLAN FOR THE USE OF THE 0129 RECORDS ARCHIVE FUND 
 

Personnel  $  296,856 
 

Contribution to the Office of Travis County Records Management and 370,523 
Communication 

These costs cover expenses related to offsite storage and the salary of an 
imaging production technician. 

 

Digitizing and Indexing Permanent Library of Real Property Records and 310,973 
 Criminal Minutes 

This is the continuation of the project to convert microfilm to digital 
images and create computer indexes for each image for all real property 
documents recorded between 1836 and 1987.  This project has expanded 
to include the redaction of personal identifiers from internet images.  We 
are also working to digitize microfilm copies of criminal minutes to 
increase retrieval capabilities and improve expunction procedures. 

 

Ongoing Transfer to General Fund for Personnel Costs 7,702 
 

Computer Equipment 90,000 
 

Estimated Reserves 2,819,147 
 Any unused funds will be classified as allocated reserves. These funds may 

be used for items such as additional temporary personnel resources, 
equipment, or professional services necessary for records management 
projects; replacement computer equipment; or a supplement to salaries 
following actions such as performance based pay increases, 
reclassifications, or pay adjustments. 

 

  TOTAL $3,895,201 
 
 
For more information, please contact the Travis County Clerk’s Office at (512) 854-9188. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christina Adair/512-854-4842 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: APPROVE THE FUNDING OF AN UPGRADE TO THE 
SAP BUSINESS WAREHOUSE (BW) ENVIRONMENT  
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
This request is to approve the reallocation of one-time BEFIT (New Financial/HR System) 
project funds for the purpose of upgrading the existing SAP financial, procurement, human 
resources and payroll comprehensive reporting environment also known by the technical name 
SAP Business Warehouse (BW) to version SAP BW 7.4 on HANA.  
 
Attachments: 
 

A. A memo to Commissioners’ Court with detailed information about the request and 
current status of BEFIT project funds 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
The performance issues with our existing environment and specifically our CAFR 
(Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) analysis tools need to be addressed and this solution 
represents the best long-term solution for the County. Our recommendation is, therefore, to 
allow for the funds to be reallocated.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The main issue to be resolved by this upgrade is the degradation of SAP BW performance over 
time as data volumes have increased. This is most evident to the Auditor’s Office Financial 
Reporting team responsible for the CAFR.  

This upgrade also presents new possibilities for delivering reports in that we can deliver 
dashboards and other analytical reports without being limited by performance constraints. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
The one-time costs for the upgrade will be covered by existing one-time Certificates of 
Obligation (CO) and General Fund project funds. The ongoing annual cost for the SAP software 
maintenance will in its entirety be covered by re-allocating existing funds within the Auditor’s 
Office cost center for SAP County-wide Maintenance and Support.  
  
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 26Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
 AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

 
NICKI RILEY, CPA 
COUNTY AUDITOR 

 

 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY   
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

P.O. BOX 1748 
AUSTIN, TX 78767 

(512) 854-9125 
FAX: (512) 854-9164 

 

Page 1 of 5 

TO:  Commissioners’ Court    DATE:  September 9, 2014 
 
FROM:  Christina Adair, County Auditor’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Approve the Funding of an Upgrade to the SAP Business Warehouse (BW) 

Environment  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposed Motion: Approve the reallocation of existing one-time project funds (known as 
project BEFIT – new financial system) to fund an upgrade to the SAP Business Warehouse 
(BW) environment 
 
Purpose: This request is to fund the upgrade of the existing SAP financial, procurement, human 
resources and payroll comprehensive reporting environment also known by the technical name 
SAP Business Warehouse (BW) to version SAP BW 7.4 on HANA.  
 
Details: The SAP Financial and HR system has been live for almost 20 months or two fiscal years 
(FY13-14). Until recently, County SAP users focused on how to operationally process 
transactions; not how to retrieve information from SAP to aid in planning and decision making 
processes.  Now that we have two years of data in the system, we can compare data monthly 
and/or yearly.  As the County overall is becoming more comfortable with SAP, requests for 
more sophisticated information from the system to perform analysis are increasing.  
 
The original SAP procurement included the Business Warehouse (BW) environment. BW is a 
very large database of information from all modules in SAP and is used to generate reports. BW 
is up and running and in full use. More than 1,000 employees have access to a variety of SAP 
BW reports today. SAP BW is also part of key County analytical efforts such as the annual CAFR 
(Comprehensive Annual Financial Report), which could not be produced on time without our 
SAP BW system.  

In addition, the first SAP BW management dashboards are now available County-wide. One 
provides budget to actual trend information and the other is for employee time and payroll cost 
analysis. A third dashboard, a separate analysis dashboard for the Purchasing Office, is also 
available as of today with good reviews from the set of Buyers testing the new functionality.   
 
Performance Need:  As data volumes have increased over time, SAP BW performance has 
degraded noticeably. This is most evident to the Auditor’s Office Financial Reporting team that 
is responsible for the CAFR. The CAFR reports are complex with extensive variance analysis 
across years, funds, functions and more. The reports have been optimized as much as possible 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Page 2 of 5 

within the current environment.  Poor performance with long user wait times has also been a 
key factor in the delayed roll-out of management dashboards.  
 
The proposed SAP BW environment upgrade will dramatically improve performance.  All 
reports County-wide that are generated from the BW will be generated much faster.    
 
Expected Benefits of the upgrade: 

• Enhanced report performance for all County users – dramatically reduced wait times for 
report generation. 

• Improved CAFR reporting performance to accommodate current and future increased 
data volumes – extending the viability of the current CAFR system for many years to 
come. It also maximizes the return on the investment of considerable Vendor and County 
employee time and effort that has already occurred in the CAFR system. 

• Increased responsiveness for dashboards and analytic reports – fewer end-user delays. 

• Expanded dashboard and other analytic report functionality by eliminating performance 
constraints. 

• Ability to focus developers’ time on report functionality instead of optimizing for 
performance. 

• Ability to provide more up-to-date information in the SAP Business Warehouse. Today, 
data is updated nightly – the upgrade will allow us to update the information more than 
once a day where a need exists. 

 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:  
 
Project BEFIT was funded by a combination of Certificate of Obligations (CO) and General Fund 
monies.  The funding was allocated over four years (FY11-FY14) to cover three distinct phases 
of the project. Phase 1 was the implementation of Financials and Procurement functionality 
followed by Phase 2 for Human Resources and Payroll functionality. Both of these phases have 
been completed. Phase 3 was a set of individual new functions requested by various County 
offices/departments at the time of the procurement; however, these functions were not part of 
the contracts signed in December 2010 with the implementer (Labyrinth Solutions) or the 
software vendor (SAP). These contracts included only Phase 1 and Phase 2. None of the 
functions envisioned for Phase 3 are fully implemented. Inventory Management on SAP for 
HHS&VS Housing is in progress and Fleet Management for TNR is in progress with different 
software than SAP.  
 
The grids on the next couple of pages show the current and planned status of one-time funds 
budgeted for project BEFIT. 
 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Page 3 of 5 

General Fund One-Time Project Budget 

 
Budget Actuals Released* Balance 

Planned 
FY14/15 

Phase 1 & 2 $1,956,724  $1,686,183  $221,003  $49,538  $0  

 
          

Phase 3 $521,113  $57,781  $177,870  $285,462  $0  
Fleet Management  $33,585  $0  $33,585  $0  $0  

Inventory 
Management $119,895  $0  $0  $119,895  $0  

Cost Accounting $49,475  $0  $32,229  $17,246  $0  
Budget Preparation  $102,423  $55,349  $0  $47,074  $0  

Treasury  $114,488  $2,432  $112,056  $0  $0  
Governance Risk & 

Compliance  $101,247  $0  $0  $101,247  $0  

           
Upgrade SAP BW 
Environment ** $0  $0  $0  $0  $185,000  

Planned FY14/15 *** $0  $0  $0  $0  $150,000  

 
          

Project TOTALS $2,477,837  $1,743,964  $398,873  $335,000  $335,000  
* At end of FY13, $254,588 was released back to General Fund and an additional $144,285 is planned to 
be released at the end of FY14 for a total of $398,873. 
** This request, see details below. 
*** The planned amounts are separate from this request and subject to Commissioner Court approval 
as a procurement item during a future Commissioners' Court Meeting 

 
  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Page 4 of 5 

Certificates of Obligation One-Time Project Budget 

 
Budget Actuals Reallocated  Balance 

Phase 1 & 2 $19,942,821  $19,728,640  $0  $214,181  

 
      $0  

Phase 3 $4,358,704  $347,397  $732,613  $3,278,694  
Fleet Management  $515,318  $0  $515,318 * $0  

Inventory 
Management $636,555  $72,300  $0  $564,255  

Cost Accounting $671,599  $0  $0  $671,599  
Budget Preparation  $1,001,817  $264,040  $0  $737,777  

Treasury  $786,594  $11,057  $0  $775,537  
Governance Risk & 

Compliance  $746,821  $0  $217,295 ** $529,526  

 
        

Upgrade SAP BW 
Environment *** $0  $0  $493,142  -$493,142 

 
        

Project TOTALS $24,301,525  $20,076,037  $1,225,755  $2,999,733 **** 
* This was reallocated to TNR for the procurement and implementation of a separate Fleet 
Management system. 
** This was reallocated for the procurement of the SAP product Process Orchestration after approval 
by Commissioners’ Court in June, 2014 
*** This request, see details below. 
**** We have met with the Planning and Budget Office (PBO) and requested the re-budgeting of 
project BEFIT CO funds for FY15, which PBO supports and has included in the FY15 budget plans.  The 
reason is twofold in that the funds need to be available for the Phase 3 items still in progress and the 
current SAP hardware is out of maintenance in early FY16 requiring CO funds in late FY15 or early FY16.    

 
The Auditor’s Office originally requested the functionality in the Governance and Risk 
Compliance (GRC) component. GRC has since been deemed unnecessary to implement since 
the resulting benefits do not warrant the cost for implementation.  With this request, we are 
asking for the approval to reallocate the majority of CO funds initially set aside for GRC along 
with one-time general fund project budget to fund an upgrade to the SAP Business Warehouse 
(BW) environment with the following specifics: 
 

Upgrade to SAP Business 
Warehouse 

One-Time 
CO 

One-Time 
General Fund 

Hardware (not to exceed) $186,500 $139,500* 
SAP  Software $146,642 $0 

Migration Services (not to exceed) $160,000 $45,500 
TOTAL: $493,142 $185,000 

* 3 years maintenance and services 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Page 5 of 5 

The ongoing annual cost for the maintenance of the SAP software is $32,262 beginning in FY15. 
This cost will in its entirety be covered by re-allocating existing funds within the Auditor’s Office 
cost center for SAP County-wide Maintenance and Support.  
 
cc: Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
 Diana Ramirez, PBO 

Jessica Rio, PBO 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 27Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, County Judge’s Office 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON BOND FOR 
PRECINCT THREE RESERVE DEPUTY CONSTABLE FELICIA KAY 
MONTGOMERY-CAFFERATA. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code section 86.012(c) a reserve 
deputy constable must take the official oath and must execute a bond in the 
amount of $2,000, payable to the constable.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Recommend approval. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Invoice in the amount of $178.00. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Margie Solano, Risk Management, HRMD 
Jose Hernandez, Office Manager, Travis County Constable, Precinct 3 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 28Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, County Judge’s Office 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON BOND FOR DANIEL 
PRASHNER, TRAVIS COUNTY PROBATE COURT JUDGE. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Sec. 25.00231.  BOND; INSURANCE.  (a)  This section 

controls over a specific provision for a particular court or 

county that attempts to create a requirement for a bond or 

insurance that conflicts with this section. 

(b)  Before beginning the duties of office, a judge of a 

statutory probate court must execute a bond that is: 

(1)  payable to the county treasurer or other person 

performing the duties of county treasurer; 

(2)  in the amount of $500,000; 

(3)  conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties 

of the office; and 

(4)  approved by the commissioners court. 

(c)  In lieu of the bond required by Subsection (b), a county 

may elect to obtain insurance or to self-insure in the amount 

required by Subsection (b) against losses caused by the 

statutory probate court judge's gross negligence in performing 

the duties of office. 

(d)  The commissioners court of a county shall pay the 

premium for the bond or insurance required by this section out 

of the general funds of the county. 

(e)  This section does not apply to an assigned or visiting 

judge sitting by assignment in a statutory probate court. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:   Margie Solano, Risk Management, 
HRMD; Christy Nisbett, Probate Court 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 29Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
Meeting Date:    September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE CONFERENCE OF URBAN COUNTIES 
TECHSHARE CRIMINAL COURTS PROJECT. (THIS ITEM MAY BE TAKEN IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
UNDER THE CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY EXCEPTION) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST  AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 30Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, September 16, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, (512) 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, IGR, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON SUPPORT OF 
REAUTHORIZATION OF THE FEDERAL “SECOND CHANCE ACT” 
DURING THE CURRENT SESSION OF THE UNITED STATES 
CONGRESS. 
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORDINATOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Legislation has been introduced in Congress to reauthorize and expand the 
Second Chance Act, a federal grant program for activities that support 
people returning to their communities after incarceration. The Council on 
State Governments has asked local governments to express their support, 
either by signing on to its letter or by sending their own communication. 
 
IGR joins Criminal Justice Planning and the Adult Probation Department in 
recommending that the Court support Second Chance Act reauthorization, 
and execute the attached draft letter for transmission to appropriate 
members of Congress.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
First signed into law on April 9, 2008, the Second Chance Act was designed 
to help prisoners effectively reintegrate into the community. The Act 
established grants for government agencies and nonprofits to provide 
services that reduce recidivism by improving outcomes for people returning 
from prisons, jails, and juvenile facilities.  
 
In the five years since implementation of the Second Chance Act, the Bureau 
of Justice Assistance in the Department of Justice has awarded more than 
$250 million in grants to nearly 500 recipients – including a $565,345 grant 
to Travis County CSCD in 2012. The recidivism reduction grants go toward 
initiatives such as treating substance abuse and co-occurring disorders, and 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 31Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

 

providing career technology programs for inmates. In addition, the Second 
Chance Act National Reentry Resource Center, supported by the Council of 
State Governments (CSG), serves as a “one stop shop” for technical 
assistance, webinars and reentry research.  
 
The 2012 grant to CSCD allowed it to bridge a gap in the existing service 
delivery continuum in our community and positively affected the lives of 
individuals with co-occurring disorders by providing the resources needed to 
deliver intensive specialized treatment and case management services for 
probationers with co-occurring disorders.  One client served by the grant 
program had a lengthy criminal history and lived on the streets of Austin, 
Texas for 13 years. He has successfully completed the re-entry program, 
maintained his sobriety, and now, for the first time in 13 years, has a steady 
home and a job. Without continued support of the Second Chance Act, 
clients such as this one would continue to fall through the cracks and public 
safety would be compromised.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   
The Second Chance Reauthorization Act of 2013 (S. 1690/H.R. 3465), filed 
last November but as yet not acted upon by the 113th Congress, extends 
these prisoner reentry programs for an additional five years, including 
demonstration grants, mentoring, substance abuse and family-based 
programming. It also expands the number of grant programs available and 
promotes increased accountability and outcomes from grantees.  
 
The Council on State Governments has taken the lead in asking reentry 
stakeholders, including local governments, to indicate their support for 
reauthorization, either by signing on to the CSG’s letter (attached) or by 
sending a letter or resolution of their own. The National Association of 
Counties (NACo) is joining in this effort, and have distributed the attached 
fact sheet.  
 
Both Criminal Justice Planning and CSCD support reauthorization and join 
IGR in recommending that the Court execute a letter of support for 
transmission to the chairs and ranking members of the respective 
committees, as well as to members of those committees representing Travis 
County in the Congress: Senator John Cornyn, Senator Ted Cruz and 
Representative Lamar Smith. A draft letter is attached for the Court’s review 
and execution.  
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

http://csgjusticecenter.org/nrrc
http://csgjusticecenter.org/nrrc
http://www.csg.org/
http://www.csg.org/
https://beta.congress.gov/bill/113th-congress/senate-bill/1690
https://beta.congress.gov/bill/113th-congress/house-bill/3465?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%5B%22HR+3465%22%5D%7D


 

 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  N/A.   
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS WHO MIGHT BE 

AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS REQUEST:   
 
 
 
Roger Jefferies 
County Executive, Justice and Public Safety 
Email: Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us    
 
Charles Robinson, Director 
Travis County Community Supervision and Corrections Department 
Email: Charles.Robinson@co.travis.tx.us     
 
John Hille, Transactions Division Director 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Email: John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us   
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Council of State Governments, Draft support letter for S. 1690/H.R. 3465 

to be endorsed by stakeholders, September, 2014.  
2) National Transitional Jobs Network, Second Chance Act Fact Sheet, 

November 2013 
3) National Association of Counties, Policy Brief: Lower Jail Recidivism and 

Reinvest The Savings: Support the Second Chance Act, 2014.  
4) IGR, DRAFT letter to key elected officials expressing support for SCA 

Reauthorization, September 11, 2014.  
 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

mailto:Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Charles.Robinson@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us


September XX, 2014 
 
 
 

The Honorable Patrick Leahy 

Chairman, Senate Judiciary Committee 

Dirksen Senate Office Building, SD-224 

Washington, DC 20510 

 
The Honorable Chuck Grassley 

Ranking Member, Senate Judiciary 

Committee Dirksen Senate Office Building, 

SD-152 Washington, DC 20510 

The Honorable Bob Goodlatte 

Chairman, House Judiciary Committee 

Rayburn House Office Building, 2138 

Washington, DC 20515 

 
The Honorable John Conyers 

Ranking Member, House Judiciary Committee 

Rayburn House Office Building, 2142 

Washington, DC 20515 
 

Dear Chairmen Leahy and Goodlatte and Ranking Members Grassley and Conyers: 

 
We write to express our support for S. 1690/H.R. 3465, the Second Chance Reauthorization Act of 2013. Our 

diverse organizations have come together because we represent constituencies working to increase public 

safety by improving reentry from prisons, jails, and juvenile facilities. 

 
This bipartisan bill, introduced by Senators Patrick Leahy (D-VT) and Rob Portman (R-OH) and 

Representatives Jim Sensenbrenner (R-WI), Danny Davis (D-IL), Howard Coble (R-NC), Bobby Scott (D-VA), 

Spencer Bachus (R-AL), Marcia Fudge (D-OH) and Steve Chabot (R-OH), provides resources to state and local 

governments as well as community-based organizations to improve success rates for people released from prison 

and jail. 

 
The Second Chance Act will provide crucial resources at a time when they are desperately needed. In 2009, 

federal and state prisons held over 1.6 million inmates—one in every 199 U.S. residents—and released 729,295 

individuals back to their communities. More than 9 million individuals are released from jail each year. 

Unfortunately, most individuals face numerous challenges when returning to the community from prison or jail, 

and research indicates that over half are reincarcerated within three years of their release. Research confirms 

that comprehensive, coordinated services can help formerly incarcerated individuals find stable employment 

and housing, thereby reducing recidivism. 

 
By providing the resources needed to coordinate reentry services and policies at the state and local levels, S. 

1690/H.R. 3465 will ensure that the tax dollars spent on corrections do not simply fuel a revolving door in and 

out of prison. State and local governments around the country, as well as community and faith-based 

organizations, are in dire need of these resources to address prisoner reentry and recidivism reduction efforts in 

our communities. 

 
Please support S. 1690/H.R. 3465, the Second Chance Reauthorization Act of 2013. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 

[Signatures are still being collected] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

National Organizations: 
 

1. Advocacy, Reentry, Resource, Outreach 
2. African American Ministers in Action 
3. African Methodist Episcopal Church 
4. Aleph Institute 
5. Alkermes, Inc. 
6. American Civil Liberties Union 
7. American Correctional Association 
8. American Friends Service Committee 
9. American Humanist Association 
10. American Jail Association 
11. American Probation and Parole Association 
12. Armenian Orthodox Church 
13. Association of Reentry Professionals 
14. Association of State Correctional Administrators 
15. Campaign for Community Change 
16. Campaign for the Fair Sentencing of Youth 
17. Celebrities for Justice 
18. Christian Community Development Association  
19. Church of Scientology National Affairs Office 
20. The Clapham Group  
21. The Chuck Colson Center for Christian Worldview 
22. Community Action Partnership 
23. Community of Christ 
24. Corporation for Supportive Housing 
25. Correctional Education Association 
26. Council of Juvenile Corrections 
27. Council of State Governments 
28. Crossroads Bible Institute 
29. CSG Justice Center 
30. CURE 
31. CURE – Women Incarcerated 
32. Daughters of Destiny  
33. Disciples Justice Action Network 
34. Equal Justice Initiative 
35. Evangelicals for Social Action  
36. Evangelical Lutheran Church in America 
37. Faces and Voices of Recovery 
38. Faith and Family Coalition 
39. Families Against Mandatory Minimums 
40. Former Incarcerated Persons/Effective Reentry Collaborative 
41. Friends Committee on National Legislation 

42. Global Youth Justice 
43. Goodwill Industries International 
44. Healing Communities USA 
45. Healthy Families/Thriving Communities Collaborative Council (HFTCCC) 
46. Human Rights Defense Center 
47. Human Rights Ministries of the Christian Church (Disciples of Christ) 
48. International Community Corrections Association 
49. International Corrections and Prisons Association 
50. International Council of Community Churches 
51. Jewish Council for Public Affairs 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



52. JOBS for LIFE 
53. JustLeadership USA 
54. Justice Fellowship 
55. The Leadership Conference on Civil and Human Rights 
56. Legal Action Center 
57. Major Cities Chiefs 
58. Major County Sheriffs Association 
59. Men of Standard Ministry 
60. Mennonite Central Committee U.S. Washington Office 
61. Mental Health America 
62. National Advocacy Center of the Sisters of the Good Shepherd 

63. National African American Drug Policy Coalition, Inc. 
64. National Alliance of Faith and Justice 
65. National Alliance on Mental Illness 
66. National Alliance to End Homelessness 
67. National Association for the Advancement of Colored People 
68. National Association of Counties 
69. National Association of Drug Court Professionals 

70. National Association of Evangelicals 
71. National Association of Previous Prisoners, Inc. 
72. National Association of Police Organizations 
73. National Association of Social Workers 
74. National Association of State Alcohol and Drug Abuse Directors 
75. National Baptist Convention USA  
76. National Coalition for the Homeless  
77. National Conference of State Legislatures 
78. National Correctional Industries Association 
79. National Council of Behavioral Health 
80. National Council of the Churches of Christ, USA 
81. National Criminal Justice Association 
82. National Death Row Assistance Network of CURE 
83. National Employment Law Project 
84. National Fatherhood Initiative 
85. National H.I.R.E. Network 
86. National Hispanic Christian Leadership Conference  
87. National Law Center on Homelessness & Poverty 
88. National Organization of Forensic Social Work 
89. National Religious Campaign Against Torture 
90. National Sheriffs’ Association 
91. National Urban League 
92. NETWORK - A National Catholic Social Justice Lobby 
93. North American Association of Wardens and Superintendents 
94. Open Society Policy Center 
95. Orthodox Christian Prison Ministry 
96. The Pew Charitable Trusts 
97. Presbyterian Church USA 
98. Prison Fellowship  
99. Progressive National Baptist Convention 
100. Robert F. Kennedy Juvenile Justice Collaborative 
101. Samuel Dewitt Proctor Conference 
102. Sojourners  
103. Southern Baptist Ethics & Religious Liberty Commission 
104. Southern Center for Justice 
105. Southwest Key Programs 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



106. Straight Ahead Ministries 

107. The Advocates Against Felon Employment Discrimination Act 
108. The Episcopal Church  
109. The Real Cost of Prisons Project 
110. The Salvation Army National Headquarters   
111. The Sentencing Project 
112. Treatment Communities of America 
113. Union for Reform Judaism 
114. Unitarian Universalist Association 
115. United Church of Christ, Justice and Witness Ministries 

116. United Methodist Church, General Board of Church & Society 
117. United States Conference of Mayors 
118. United States Jesuit Conference 
119. Vietnam Veterans of America, Inc. 
120. Wings of Freedom 
121. 9to5 

 
State and Local Organizations: 
Alabama 

122. Alabama CURE 
123. Alabama Justice Ministries Network 
124. Greater Birmingham Ministries 

 
Alaska 

125. Alaska Native Justice Center 
126. Alaska Correctional Ministries  

 
Arizona 

127. Arizona Chief Probation Officer’s Association 
128. Arizona Second Chance 
129. David's Hope 
130. Middle Ground Prison Reform 
131. NAMI Sedona/Verde Valley 
132. Pastor Joy Ministries 
133. Yavapai Reentry Project 

 
Arkansas 

134. Arkansas CURE 
135. Compassion Works for All, Inc. 
136. End Mass Incarceration – Little Rock Arkansas Chapter  
137. Life After Prison Ministries  
138. Catholic Charities of Arkansass 

 California 
139. African Descent Lutheran Association 
140. Associated Prison Ministries of California 

141. California Association of Alcohol and Drug Program Executives, Inc. 

142. California Council of Community Mental Health Agencies 
143. Center on Juvenile and Criminal Justice 
144. Chief Probation Officers of California 
145. Choices Domestic Violence Solutions 
146. Community Works West 

147. Contra Costa County, CA 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



148. Criminon International 
149. Fatherhood Project at Theo Jail 
150. The Greater Sacramento Urban League 
151. HealthRight 360 
152. Integrated Recovery Network 

153. Jubilee Jobs 
154. Mind Body Awareness Project, Inc. 
155. NAMI California 
156. Orange County Re-Entry Partnership 
157. Prisoners Rights Union 
158. Resource Center for the Arts and Education 
159. Rubicon Programs 
160. United Job Creation Council 

 Connecticut 
161. Connecticut Center for Social Innovation 
162. My Brother’s Keeper 
163. New Life Prison Ministry of Old Lyme, CT 
164. One Million Americans 
165. Reentry Central 
166. South Meriden Trinity United Methodist Church 
167. The Peace Affirmation and Justice Committee of the First Congregational Church 

 Colorado 

168. Colorado Criminal Justice Reform Coalition 

169. Colorado Department of Labor & Employment 

170. Community Reentry Place Inside/Out 

171. The Butterfly Effect 
172. Victim Offender Reconciliation Program of Denver 
173. FOCUS Reentry  
174. Colorado Council of Churches 

 
Delaware  

175. Delaware Center for Justice  
176. Prison Ministries of Delaware, Inc. 

 
District of Columbia 

177. Catholic Charities of the Archdiocese of Washington 
178. DC Jobs Council  

 
Florida 

179. Gateway Community Services 
180. Florida Alcohol and Drug Abuse Association 

181. Jail Ministry of Hillsborough County, Tampa, FL 
182. NAMI of Collier County 
183. Palm Beach County Criminal Justice Commission 

184. Pax Christi Florida 
185. Positive Images Enterprises, Inc. 
186. S&S Destin Realty, LLC 
187. St. Peter Claver Prison Ministry 

188. The Living Harvest, Inc. 

189. The Unlimited Path, Inc. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Georgia 
190. Almost There, Inc. 
191. Camden County Reentry Program, Inc. 

192. Georgia Association of Community Service Boards 

193. Georgia State University, School of Public Health 
194. Griffin-Spalding Reentry Task Force 
195. Racial Justice Action Center 
196. Level Ground, Inc. 
197. Second Chance International Ministries, Inc. 

 
Hawaii 

198. BHIS, LLC  
199. Community Alliance on Prisons 

 

Illinois 
200. The Cara Program 
201. Community Behavioral Healthcare Association 

202. CURE Illinois 

203. Goldie's Place 

204. Haymarket Center 

205. Illinois Association of Rehabilitation Facilities (IARF) 

206. Lutheran Social Services of Illinois: Prisoner and Family Ministry 
207. Macon County Court Services 
208. NAMI DuPage 

209. National Transitional Jobs Network and Heartland Alliance for Human Needs and Human Rights 

210. Safer Foundation 
211. Soldiers of Christ Prison Ministries 
212. TASC Illinois 

213. The Frdom ® Road Foundation 
214. TW Ministry 
215. Westside Health Authority 

 Indiana 
216. Angel’s Wings, Inc. 
217. Center for Community Justice 
218. Indiana CURE 
219. PACE, Inc.  
220. New Life Development Ministries Recycle Force 

 Iowa 
221. The Church of Damascus Road, Parish and Reentry Transition Ministry 
222. Freedom House Ministries 
223. Glorious Hope Ministries 
224. Grace Without Borders 
225. Iowa Association of Community Providers 
226. Iron Sharpens Iron 
227. Living Stone 
228. New Life Prison Community 
229. Teen Challenge of the Midlands 

 Kansas 
230. IBSA Inc. 
231. Kansas Department of Corrections 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



232. St. Mark United Methodist Church Prison Ministry Team 
233. United Methodist Church Great Plains Conference Mercy & Justice Ministry    
234. Seeds of Hope Jail Ministry 

 Kentucky 
235. Big Brothers Big Sisters of Kentuckiana 
236. The Carpenter’s Christian Church 
237. Correctional Healthcare Companies 
238. Jubilee Jobs of Lexington 
239. Nia Community of Faith 
240. NOA Counseling 
241. Opportunities for Working & Learning 

242. Reentry by Design 
 
Louisiana 

243. Louisiana CURE 
244. Orleans Parish Prison Reform Coalition  
245. Louisiana Center for Children’s Rights  
246. Voice of the Ex-Offender New Orleans   
247. Jesuit Social Research Institute, Loyola University New Orleans  

 
Maine 

248. Maine Association of Substance Abuse Programs 
249. Maine Prisoner Advocacy Coalition  

 

Maryland 
250. AdvoCare, Inc. 
251. Celebration Ministries  
252. Community Behavioral Health Association of Maryland 
253. CrossRoads Freedom Center 

254. Kathy Seifert – ESPS Behavioral Health Company 
255. Maryland CURE 
256. Montgomery County (MD) Department of Corrections 
257. Prison Ministry Task Force, Episcopal Diocese of Maryland  

258. Redemption Transformation Center (dba) “Fertile Ground” 

259. Resource Develop Group, Inc. 

260. Social Solutions Global 
261. The Chill Station, Inc. 
262. The National Resource Society for Women Veterans, Inc. 
263. Unshackled Ministries Inc. 

264. Volunteers of America Chesapeake, Inc. 

 Massachusetts 

265. Alternative Solutions Associates, Inc. 
266. Association for Behavioral Healthcare – Massachusetts 
267. Barnstable County Correctional Facility 
268. The Center for Church and Prison, Inc. 
269. Charles Hamilton Houston Institute for Race and Justice at Harvard Law School 
270. NAMI Massachusetts 
271. On With Living and Learning  
272. Span, Inc. 

 Michigan 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



273. 70x7 Life Recovery 

274. Colleen Conklin Healthcare Training & Consulting, LLC 

275. Harbor Hall, Inc. - Petoskey, MI 
276. Michigan Association of Community Mental Health Services 
277. Michigan Council on Crime & Delinquency  
278. Michigan CURE 
279. Ottawa County Michigan Works! 
280. Prevention Concepts, Inc. 
281. Prisoners in Christ 
282. Project Unity for Life 

 Minnesota 

283. 180 Degrees, Inc. 

284. Anderson Professional Training Services 
285. Momentum Enterprises 
286. NAMI Minnesota 
287. OID Dream Center of St. Cloud 
288. Olmsted County Adult Behavioral Health and Criminal Justice Programs 
289. Sector Synergies, LLC 
290. Transform Minnesota 

 Mississippi 

291. FAVOR MS Recovery Advocacy Project 
292. Mississippi Association of Community Mental Health Centers 
293. John and Vera Mae Perkins Foundation 

 Missouri 
294. Anger Alternatives 
295. Catholic Charities of Kansas City – St. Joseph 
296. Connections to Success Kansas Missouri 
297. Dismas House Kansas City 
298. Fathers Support Center 
299. Kansas City Metropolitan Crime Commission 

300. Metro St. Louis Coalition 

301. Saint Louis University Prison Program 
302. The Shepherd’s Way Ministries, Inc. 
303. Reconciliation Services 

 
Montana  

269.              Freedom in Christ Prison Ministry  
270.              Montana Catholic Conference 

 
Nebraska 

304. Houses of Hope of Nebraska, Inc. 
305. Followers of Christ Prison Ministry - Evangelical Lutheran Church in America Nebraska Synod 
306. Impact One Community Connection 
307. Compassion in Action, Inc.  

 Nevada 

308. Clark County Detention Center 

309. Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

310. Partnership Carson City 

311. West Care Foundation 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



312. Acting in Community Together in Organizing Northern Nevada 

 New Hampshire 

313. Cheshire County Department of Corrections 

314. Strafford County Criminal Justice Program 

 New Jersey 
315. Camden Churches Organized for People 
316. Constraining Love Ministries, Inc. 

317. Doors of Hope Community, Inc. 

318. Monarch Housing Associates 

319. New Jersey Association on Correction 
320. New Jersey Association of Mental Health and Addiction Agencies 
321. New Jersey Chapter of the American Correctional Association 
322. Point Community Church 
323. Saint Peter’s Preparatory School 

324. The Affordable Homes Group 

 New Mexico 
325. CURE, New Mexico 
326. New Mexico’s Attorney General’s Office 
327. New Mexico Conference of Churches 
328. New Mexico Women’s Justice Project 

 New York 
329. Allegany County Probation Department 
330. Buffalo Urban League 
331. Center for Community Alternatives 
332. Church of St. Charles Borromeo/Resurrection Chapel 

333. College and Community Fellowship 
334. Education from the Inside Out Coalition 
335. InterVarsity New York City Urban Project 
336. Judicial Process Commission 
337. Lifeline Ministries International Organization 

338. NAMI NYS Criminal Justice Committee  

339. National Employment Law Project 
340. New York CURE 
341. New York State Council for Community Behavioral Healthcare 

342. New York Therapeutic Communities, Inc. 

343. Odyssey House, Inc. 

344. Stay'n Out Program N.Y.T.C. Inc. 
345. The Coalition of Behavioral Health Agencies, Inc. 
346. The Fortune Society 
347. The Urban League of Westchester County, Inc. 
348. WESPAC Foundation 

 North Carolina 
349. Benevolence Farm 
350. Bob Barker Company Foundation 
351. Durham Prison Reentry Program (PREP) 
352. ExodusFoundation.Org 
353. Green Skills Nu-Entry Aftercare Employment 
354. Juvenile Justice Project, Norman Adrian Wiggins School of Law, Campbell University  

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



355. North Carolinians Against Gun Violence Education Fund 
356. North Carolina CURE 
357. North Carolina Faith and Freedom Coalition 
358. Project LIFT 
359. University of North Carolina Charlotte / Dept. of Criminal Justice and Criminology 

 
North Dakota 

360. Centre, Inc. 
361. Project HOME of My Father’s House 
362. United Methodist Church Dakotas-Minnesota Area Conference 

 Ohio 
363. Athens County Reentry Program 
364. Clark County Reentry Coalition 

365. Drug Policy Alliance in Ohio 

366. International Community Corrections Association 
367. Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction 
368. Ohio Justice & Policy Center 
369. OIC of Clark County/Clark County Reentry Program 
370. Richland County Reentry Court/Richland County Reentry Coalition 

371. Talbert House 

372. The Legends Foundation 

373. The Ohio Council of Behavioral Health & Family Services Providers 
374. The Ohio Justice & Policy Center 
375. Truly Reaching You, Inc.  

376. The RIDGE Project 

 Oklahoma 
377. Oklahoma CURE  
378. Crossover Community Impact 
379. Criminal Justice & Mercy Ministries, United Methodist Church  
380. Oklahoma Conference of Churches 
 

Oregon 
381. Doors of Hope Community 
382. Mercy Corps Northwest 
383. The Miracles Club 

384. Northwest Regional Reentry Center 

385. Oregon Voices 

386. Reentry Organizations and Resources 

387. Reentry Transition Center 

388. Sponsors, Inc. 
389. The Association of Oregon Community Mental Health Programs 
390. Crossways Ministry  

 Pennsylvania 

391. Capital Region Ex-offender Support Coalition 
392. Center for Community Peacemaking 
393. Christ and St. Ambrose Episcopal Church 
394. Christian History Institute 
395. Family Services of Western Pennsylvania 
396. HPW Associates, LLC     

397. Micah Leadership Council 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



398. NAMI Pennsylvania Montgomery County 
399. Pennsylvania CURE 
400. Quantum Impact, Inc. 
401. Rhawnhurst Presbyterian Church 
402. Sound Community Solutions 
403. Tenth Presbyterian Church 
404. The Urban League of Greater Pittsburgh 
405. Treatment Trends, Inc. 
406. Vision Video 

 
Rhode Island 

407. The Institute for the Study and Practice of Nonviolence  
408. Open Doors  
409. Rhode Island State Council of Churches  

 
South Carolina 

410. Alston Wilkes Society 
411. Catholic Charities Diocese of Charleston, South Carolina 
412. South Carolina Association of Community Development Corporations   
413. South Carolina Christian Action Council 
414. Sisters of Charity Foundation of South Carolina 

 
South Dakota 

415. NAMI Sioux Falls 
416. South Dakota CURE 
417. Living Stone Prison Church 

 

Tennessee 
418. C.O.N.N.E.C.T. Ministries 
419. Focus Group Ministries 
420. The Philadelphians Prison Ministry 
421. Project Return, Inc.  
422. Mediation & Restitution/Reconciliation Services  

 Texas 

423. ATLC CORP 

424. Austin M.O.V.E. Forward 
425. Austin/Travis County Reentry Roundtable 
426. Barabbas Ministries 
427. Cenikor 
428. Creative Funding Solutions, Inc. 
429. Evangel Mission Longview 

430. Faith Action for Women in Need (FAWN) 
431. Fertile Ground "Christian Transformation Center" 
432. Jobs for Progress of the Texas Gulf Coast, Inc. 
433. Justice Ministries Network of Texas 
434. Mercy Heart 
435. NAMI Greater Houston 
436. Offender Aid & Restoration of Arlington 
437. Project R.A.R.E. 
438. Restorative Justice Ministries Council of the Episcopal Diocese of Texas 
439. Restorative Justice Ministries Network 

440. Sober Hood 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



441. Texas CURE 

442. Texas Inmate Families Association 
443. Texas Offenders Reentry Program 

444. The Association of Paroling Authorities International (APAI) 
445. The Drug Policy Forum of Texas 
446. The Washington Foundation 

 Utah 

447. Foundation for Family Life of Utah 
448. Mentor Works 
449. NAMI Utah 
450. Standing Together 

 
Vermont 

451. Hardwick Area Community Justice Center 
452. Vermont Council of Development and Health Services 
453. Vermont Ecumenical Council 
454. Vermont Interfaith Action 
455. Prison Justice Committee Vermont Conference of the United Church of Christ  

 
 
Virginia 

456. Chaplain Service Prison Ministry of Virginia 
457. Friends of Guest House 
458. Goodwill Virginia 
459. NAMI Virginia 
460. NAMI – Virginia Beach 
461. Offender Aid Restoration 
462. Opportunities for Change 
463. Resource Information Help for Disadvantaged in Virginia 
464. Shalom Makers 
465. Social Action Linking Together 
466. TASC, Inc. 

467. Virginia CARES 

468. Virginia CURE, Inc. 
469. Yahzkel Prison Ministry of Enoch Baptist Church 

 
US Virgin Islands 

470. Department of Human Services 

 Washington 

471. Pioneer Human Services 
472. Washington State CURE 
473. Cascade Prison Ministry 
474. Match Two Prison Ministries 
475. Crossways Ministries 

 
West Virginia 

476. West Virginia CURE 
477. Roman Catholic Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston Office of Prison Ministry  

 Wisconsin 

478. ATTIC Correctional Services, Inc. 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



479. Benedict Center 
480. CARE Wisconsin 
481. City of Racine  
482. European American Lutheran Association 
483. Genesis Behavioral Services, Inc. 
484. Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan 
485. Mental Health America of Wisconsin 
486. NAMI Wisconsin 
487. Open Door of Marathon County 
488. Prison Action Milwaukee, Inc. 
489. Ryan Community 
490. Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. 
491. Wisconsin Police Department 
492. Word of Hope Ministries 

 
Wyoming 

493. Second Chance Ministries 
494. NAMI Wyoming 

 
 

International 
495. Association of Paroling Authorities International 
496. Gambill on Justice - Mexico 

 
 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

1 

Second Chance Act Fact Sheet 
Everyone Deserves A Second Chance 

November 2013 

Summary 

Signed into law on April 9, 2008, the Second Chance Act (P.L. 110-199) is designed to positively 
impact the life outcomes of individuals transitioning into society after experiencing incarceration. 
The Second Chance Act authorizes grants to state, local, and federally recognized tribal 
governments to provide support strategies and services designed to reduce recidivism and create 
opportunities for people returning from prisons, jails, and juvenile facilities.  Some of the key 
provisions of the Second Chance Act include: 

 Offender Reentry Substance Abuse Treatment Grants to improve the availability of drug
treatment.

 Demonstration Grants to state, local, and tribal governments that may be used to promote safe
and successful community reintegration.

 Mentoring Grants to nonprofit organizations that may be used for
mentoring adult offenders or offering transitional services for reintegration.

 Technology Career Training Grants to state, local, and tribal government
agencies to assist in establishing programs to train individuals in prisons,
jails, or juvenile residential facilities for technology-based jobs and careers
during the three-year period before their release.

 Recidivism Reduction Grants to state departments of correction to reduce
recidivism through planning, capacity-building, and implementation of
effective and evidence-based interventions.

 National Adult and Juvenile Offender Reentry Resource Center which
establishes a national resource center to collect and disseminate best
practices and to provide training and support for reentry efforts.

Current Legislation 

In November 2013, Senator Patrick Leahy (D-VT), Senator Rob Portman (R-OH), 

Representative Danny Davis (D-IL), Representative Jim Sensenbrenner (R-WI), 

and other Senate and House leaders introduced a bill to reauthorize the Second Chance Act. 

Reauthorizing the Second Chance Act redoubles our commitment to supporting the transition from 

incarceration to communities and reducing recidivism. It also offers opportunities to continue to 

add to the strength of the Second Chance Act.  The bill includes provisions that will lead to even 

greater positive impacts on the lives of millions of Americans, including the following:  

 Inclusion of nonprofit organizations as eligible grant recipients;
 Explicit language listing transitional jobs as an allowable and suggested use of Second Chance

Act grants;

 A detailed definition of transitional jobs that reflects the NTJN’s recommendations; and

 Authorizing career training (including subsidized employment when part of a training program)

to people who are incarcerated that would occur within a 3-year period prior to their release.

Allowable uses of Second 

Chance Act Demonstration 

Grant funds include: 

 Employment services

 Substance abuse 

treatment 

 Housing

 Family programming

 Mentoring

 Victims services

 Methods to improve 

release and 

revocation decisions 

using risk assessment 

tools

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

http://www.fedcure.org/documents/SecondChanceAct-of-2007PubLaw110-199.pdf
http://www.nationalreentryresourcecenter.org/


 

2 
 

 
Second Chance Act Fact Sheet 

Everyone Deserves A Second Chance 
 

November 2013 
 

 

 

Why Congress Should Reauthorize the Second Chance Act.  

                           

The Second Chance Act strengthens communities by creating opportunities for some of our most 
vulnerable citizens to achieve economic stability. Reauthorizing the Second Chance Act redoubles 
our commitment to supporting the transition from incarceration to communities and reducing 
recidivism.  
 
The Second Chance Act addresses a national crisis.  In the past three decades the United States has 
seen a 500% increase in our nation’s incarceration rate.  There are 2.2 million people residing in 
America’s prisons and jails and each year, more than 700,000 Americans return to communities 
from prisons and jails across the country. Many of these people are unable to find sustainable 
employment due to a myriad of barriers they face once released.  Now more than ever 
comprehensive and effective reentry programming that includes employment is critical.  Indeed, 
research shows that individuals recently released from prison who participate in a transitional job 
program are far less likely to recidivate. The Second Chance Act has been instrumental in expanding 
access to transitional jobs. The provisions in the reauthorization bill will create even more 
opportunity for states and local communities to meet the employment needs of people returning 
from incarceration through the development of transitional jobs programs.   
 
The Second Chance Act is an investment in evidence-based programs that have been proven to 
reduce recidivism.  Recidivism rates in several states have seen substantial reductions due to the 
types of support strategies and services funded by the Second Chance Act.  Examples of those 
strategies include: the use of risk assessment tools to develop individualized services designed to 
reduce a person’s risk of reoffending; community supervision officers’ use of intermediate sanctions 
as an alternative to incarceration for probation violators; and diversion of non-violent offenders to 
community supervision coupled with extensive support services.  Ensuring successful reentry means 
both safer communities and improved use of taxpayer dollars.  Transitional Jobs are another 
promising example of the types of initiatives funded by the Second Chance Act.  Transitional Jobs 
not only create long-term savings of nearly $4 for every $1 spent, but they have also been proven to 
reduce recidivism rates; reduce reliance on public benefits and lower tax payer costs; improve 
educational outcomes for dependent children; create positive economic ripple effects in 
communities by increasing local demand for goods and services; and benefit employers by 
increasing productivity, financial well-being, and customer satisfaction. 
 
We encourage members of Congress to cosponsor the Second Chance Act today and move 
forward toward swift passage of this important legislation.  
 
For more information about the Second Chance Act, we encourage you to visit the National Reentry 
Resource Center at the Council of State Governments Justice Center.  
 
 

 

The National Transitional Jobs Network (NTJN) is a national coalition dedicated to getting chronically unemployed Americans 
back to work. To learn more please visit www.transitionaljobs.net, like us on Facebook or follow @tjprograms on twitter.  

 
We advance effective employment solutions including Transitional Jobs that combine wage-paid work, job skills training, and 

supportive services to help individuals facing barriers to employment succeed in the workforce. We believe that every person 
deserves the opportunity to work and support themselves and their families and that America is stronger when 

everyone who wants to work can find a job. We open doors to work through Transitional Jobs programs, research and 
evaluation, education and training, and policy advocacy. 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm

http://csgjusticecenter.org/nrrc
http://csgjusticecenter.org/nrrc
http://www.transitionaljobs.net/
https://www.facebook.com/NationalTransitionalJobsNetwork?ref=hl


 

 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES | 25 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W. SUITE 500 | WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 | 202.393.6226 | FAX 202.393.2630 | WWW.NACO.ORG 

FB.COM/NACODC | TWITTER.COM/NACOTWEETS | YOUTUBE.COM/NACOVIDEO | LINKEDIN.COM/IN/NACODC 

• Counties spend more than 
$70 billion each year on 
criminal justice and more 
than $69 billion on health 
and human services. 2,977 
counties own and operate 
a jail, and over 11 million 
individuals are admitted 
each year to local jails 

 

• The bipartisan Second 
Chance Act provides 
resources to states, local 
governments and 
nonprofit organizations to 
improve outcomes for 
people returning to 
communities from prisons, 
jails and juvenile facilities 

 

LOWER JAIL RECIDIVISM AND REINVEST THE SAVINGS: 
SUPPORT THE SECOND CHANCE ACT 

 
ACTION NEEDED:  Urge your Members of Congress, especially those serving on the House and Senate Judiciary 
committees, to fund and reauthorize the Second Chance Act. 
 
BACKGROUND: First enacted in 2008, the bipartisan Second Chance Act (P.L. 110-199) provides resources to 
states, local governments and nonprofit organizations to improve outcomes for individuals returning to 
communities from prisons, jails and juvenile facilities.  Specifically, the program improves the coordination of 
reentry services and policies at the state, tribal and local levels.  It funds local demonstration grants, reentry 
courts, family-centered programs, mental health and addiction treatment, employment, mentoring and other 
services needed to improve the transition from prison, jail or juvenile detention centers.  Additionally, the Act 
established the National Offender Re-entry Resource Center which 
manages, monitors and disseminates information to state and local 
service providers and community organizations.  
 
Second Chance Act (SCA) grants have been awarded to community and 
faith-based organizations as well as state, local and tribal governments 
spanning nearly every state in the country.  SCA grants have also 
promoted the public/private partnerships that are required to tackle the 
complex task of reducing recidivism.  NACo had a significant role in 
developing the re-entry and re-investment legislation and making the 
case for strong local government involvement and an expansion of 
pretrial services.   
 
Because 2,977 counties own and operate a jail, and over 11 million 
individuals are admitted each year, SCA has been a key legislative priority 
since its inception.  Furthermore, counties spend more than $70 billion 
each year on criminal justice and more than $69 billion on health and 
human services, so reducing recidivism in our communities yields savings, 
while enhancing public safety.  
 
Both House and Senate Appropriations Committees included funding for Second Chance Act programs in their 
respective FY2014 Commerce, Justice, Science and related agencies (CJS) appropriations bills which passed 
both chambers in July, 2013.  The CJS bill was included in the final omnibus FY2014 Consolidated 
Appropriations Act which was signed into law on January 16, 2014. The final FY2014 Omnibus Appropriations 
bill (P.L. 113-76), funded Second Chance Act programs at $68 million. 

 
 

QUICK FACTS 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES | 25 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W. SUITE 500 | WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 | 202.393.6226 | FAX 202.393.2630 | WWW.NACO.ORG 

NACo members are encouraged to contact their Members of Congress and urge them to fund and reauthorize 
the Second Chance Act.  At a time when Congress is increasingly focused on accountability, programs like SCA 
assist in reducing recidivism and can yield huge savings in the criminal justice, health care and human services 
systems.   
 
KEY TALKING POINTS: 
 

• According to the U. S. Bureau of Justice Statistics, there are more than 11 million individuals admitted 
annually. Of that number, only about 4 percent of jail admissions result in sentences to prison or in 
other terms—96 percent of jail detainees and inmates return directly to the community from jail.  

 
• Counties spend more than $70 billion each year on criminal justice and more than $69 billion on 

health and human services. 
 

• Since 2009, more than one out of three Second Chance Act awards has gone to county governments. 
Of the nearly $300 million that has been awarded to state, local, tribal, and nonprofit reentry 
programs under the Second Chance Act, $95 million has gone directly to county governments. 

 
• The reentry population is faced with a number of issues and obstacles upon their return to our 

communities and often lacking services or support, a large number of these individuals recidivate.  
They return to their communities with complex health, education, housing and other needs—which, if 
not addressed, can increase their likelihood of returning to jail or prison. 

 
• The Second Chance Act (SCA) outlines a common-sense, evidence-based approach to reducing crime 

and improving public safety.  It improves the coordination of reentry services and policies at the state, 
tribal and local levels, and provides financial assistance for demonstration grants, reentry courts, 
family-centered programs, mental health and addiction treatment, employment, mentoring and other 
services needed to improve transition from prison, jail and the juvenile justice system.   

 
• Authorization for the program expired in September 2013, but NACo continues to work with 

lawmakers to pass bipartisan, bicameral legislation to reauthorize the program.  
 

• Please support reauthorization of SCA and continued funding for the program. 
 

 
For more information, contact: Landis Rush at 202.942.4236 or arush@naco.org 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES | 25 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W. SUITE 500 | WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 | 202.393.6226 | FAX 202.393.2630 | WWW.NACO.ORG 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION:  
 
 House Committee on the Judiciary Senate Judiciary Committee 

Majority:  
Robert W. Goodlatte (R-VA), 
Chairman 
Trent Franks (R-AZ)  
Howard Coble (R-NC) 
Jim Sensenbrener (R-WI) 
Trey Gowdy (R-SC) 
Spencer Bachus (R-AL) 
Lamar Smith (R-TX) 
Steve Chabot (R-OH) 
Darrell Issa (R-CA) 
J. Randy Forbes (R-VA) 
Steve King (R-IA) 
Louie Gohmert (R-TX) 

 
Jim Jordan (R-OH) 
Ted Poe (R-TX) 
Jason Chaffetz (R-UT) 
Tom Marino (R-PA) 
Mark Amodei (R-NV) 
Raúl R. Labrador (R-ID) 
Blake Farenthold (R-TX) 
George E.B. Holding (R-NC) 
Doug Collins (R-GA) 
Ron DeSantis (R-FL) 
Jason Smith (R-MO) 
 

Majority:  
Patrick J. Leahy (D-VT), 
Chairman 
Dianne Feinstein (D-CA) 
Charles E. Schumer (D-NY) 
Richard J. Durbin (D-IL) 
Sheldon Whitehouse (D-RI) 
Amy Klobuchar (D-MN) 
Al Franken (D-MN) 
Chris Coons (D-DE) 
Richard Blumenthal (D-CT) 
Mazie K. Hirono (D-HI) 
 

Minority:  
John Conyers Jr. (D-MI), Ranking 
Member  
Jerrold Nadler (D-NY) 
Robert C. Scott (D-VA) 
Melvin Watt (D-NC) 
Zoe Lofgren (D-CA) 
Sheila Jackson Lee (D-TX) 
Steve Cohen (D-TN) 
Hank Johnson (D-GA) 
Pedro R. Pierluisi (D-PR) 
 

 
Judy Chu (D-CA) 
Ted Deutch (D-FL) 
Luis V. Gutierrez (D-IL) 
Karen Bass (D-CA) 
Cedric L. Richmond (D-LA) 
Suzan DelBene (D-WA) 
Joe Garcia (D-FL) 
Hakeem Jeffries (D-NY) 
David Cicilline (D-RI) 

Minority:  
Charles E. Grassley (R-IA), 
Ranking Member 
Orrin G. Hatch (R-UT) 
Jeff Sessions (R-AK) 
Lindsey Graham (R-SC) 
John Cornyn (R-TX) 
Mike Lee (R-UT) 
Ted Cruz (R-TX) 
Jeff Flake (R-AZ) 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

 
Travis County Administration Building, 700 Lavaca Street, Second Floor, Austin, TX 78701 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS COURT

     
    SAMUEL T. BISCOE 
RON DAVIS   County Judge BRUCE TODD 
Commissioner, Pct. 1   Commissioner, Pct. 2 
 
GERALD DAUGHERTY   MARGARET J. GÓMEZ 
Commissioner, Pct. 3   Commissioner, Pct. 4 

 

 

September 16, 2014 

 

The Honorable Patrick Leahy The Honorable Rob Goodlatte 

Chairman, Senate Judiciary Committee Chairman, House Judiciary Committee 

Dirksen Senate Office Building, SD-224 Rayburn House Office Building, 2138 

Washington, DC  20510 Washington, DC  20515 

 

The Honorable Chuck Grassley The Honorable John Conyers 

Ranking Member, Senate Judiciary Committee Ranking Member, House Judiciary Committee 

Dirksen Senate Office Building, SD-152 Rayburn House Office Building, 2142 

Washington, DC  20510 Washington, DC  20515 

 

 

Dear Chairmen Leahy and Goodlatte and Ranking Members Grassley and Conyers: 

 

The Travis County Commissioners Court supports S. 1690/H.R. 3465, the Second Chance 

Reauthorization Act of 2013, because we represent communities working to increase public 

safety by improving reentry from prisons, jails, and juvenile facilities. This bipartisan bill 

provides resources to state and local governments as well as community-based organizations to 

improve success rates for people released from prison and jail.  

 

Here in Travis County, we received a Second Chance Act grant in 2012 that allowed us to bridge 

a gap in the existing service delivery continuum in our community by providing the resources 

needed to deliver intensive specialized treatment and case management services for probationers 

with co-occurring disorders.  One client served by the grant program had a lengthy criminal 

history and was homeless when he entered the program. He has successfully completed the re-

entry program, maintained his sobriety, and now, for the first time in 13 years, has a steady home 

and a job. Without continued support of the Second Chance Act, clients such as this one would 

continue to fall through the cracks and public safety would be compromised.   

 

The Second Chance Act will provide crucial resources at a time when they are desperately 

needed. In 2009, federal and state prisons held over 1.6 million inmates—one in every 199 U.S. 

residents—and released 729,295 individuals back to their communities. More than 9 million 

individuals are released from jail each year. Unfortunately, most individuals face numerous 

challenges when returning to the community from prison or jail, and research indicates that over 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



 

 

half are re-incarcerated within three years of their release. Research confirms that 

comprehensive, coordinated services can help formerly incarcerated individuals find stable 

employment and housing, thereby reducing recidivism.  

 

By providing the resources needed to coordinate reentry services and policies at the state and 

local levels, S. 1690/H.R. 3465 will ensure that the tax dollars spent on corrections do not simply 

fuel a revolving door in and out of prison. State and local governments around the country, as 

well as community and faith-based organizations, are in dire need of these resources to address 

prisoner reentry and recidivism reduction efforts in our communities.  

 

Please support S. 1690/H.R. 3465, the Second Chance Reauthorization Act of 2013. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

_________________________________ 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

COUNTY JUDGE 

 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 

RON DAVIS BRUCE TODD 

COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 1 COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 2 

 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 

GERALD DAUGHERTY       MARGARET J. GÓMEZ 

COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 3 COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 4 

 

 

CC: The Honorable John Cornyn, Member, Senate Judiciary Committee 

 The Honorable Ted Cruz, Member, Senate Judiciary Committee 

 The Honorable Lamar Smith, Member, House Judiciary Committee 

Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Item 32Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Items 33, 34, 35 & 36Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



HFC Item 1Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



HFC Item 2Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



TAX RATE Item 1Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



PLANNING AND BUDGET OFFICE 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:    Commissioners Court 
 
FROM:   Jessica Rio, Budget Director 
 
DATE:   September 11, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Tax Rate for FY 2015 Budget 
 
A public hearing on the proposed tax rate is scheduled to take place on Tuesday, 
September 16th at 6:00 p.m. at the Commissioners Courtroom at 700 Lavaca. In 
addition, a second public hearing will occur on Friday, September 19th at 9:00 a.m. in 
the Commissioners Courtroom at 700 Lavaca. There is also the opportunity to discuss 
the proposed tax rate on any Tuesday during regularly scheduled Citizens 
Communication on the Commissioners Court agenda.  
 
The notice advertising this hearing was published in the Austin American Statesman on 
Monday, September 8th (attached). This information has also been on the Travis County 
web site and notices have appeared on TCTV. 
 
State law requires that Commissioners Court advertise the impact of the County’s 
proposed tax rate on the average annual taxable homestead. The following table 
depicts the impact on the annual tax bill in Fiscal Year 2014 and 2015 for a Travis 
County resident owning an average-valued home with a homestead exemption. 
 

Annual Tax Bill for Average Taxable Homestead 

 FY 2014 FY 2015 Difference 
Average Appraised Value of All 
Homesteads 

$282,909 $316,409 $33,500 

Taxable Value of Average Homestead $222,431 $240,026 $17,595 
Tax Rate 49.46 cents 45.63 cents -3.83 cents 
Tax Bill  $1,100.14 $1,095.24 -$4.90 

 
The average taxable homestead value increased from last year’s certified $222,431 to 
$240,026 in this year’s certification information. At the Travis County proposed tax rate 
of 45.63 cents per $100 valuation, property owners of an average homestead will see a 
decrease in the Travis County portion of their property taxes. This tax relief has been a 
high priority for the Commissioners Court, particularly in recognition of the recent 
significant increases in property values in this community. 

 Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm



Created 09-11-14 at 5:17 pm


	Item 01
	PH FY 2015 Expenditure plans
	PH Plan FY 2015 Expenditure plans
	FY15 Plan for Use of the County Clerk’s
	Records Management and Preservation Fund 0108
	and Records Archive Fund 0129
	Long Term Plan for the Use of these Funds


	Item 02
	Item 04
	Item 05
	11480 : Approve Mod 2 Ct. 44--1128 Tx AgriLife Extn Wildlife Mgt
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Dept Memo Mod 2 extn
	44--1128 Tx AgriLife Extn Mod 2 Vendor Signed


	Item 06
	11392 : 4400001084 CUC & 4400001061 Tyler Technologies Mod 1
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Purchasing Memo Techshare Odyssey renewal
	cuc 2014 resource sharing addendum tyler
	4400001061 Tyler Mod 1


	Item 07
	11467 : Signature Authority/AmerisourceBergen - Declaration of Eligibility
	Executive Summary Signature Authority
	Retail_Questionnaire_ABC-CSRA-Form_5901 (DCMC)
	Retail_Questionnaire_ABC-CSRA-Form_5901 (UMCB)
	Starflight GPO Dec DCMC
	Starflight GPO Dec UMCB


	Item 08
	11531 : Managed Assigned Counsel Program, CAPD
	PLACE CONTACTS HERE
	Exec Summary
	Dept Memo
	MACP Contract, Draft


	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	PH FY 2015 Expenditure plans
	PH Plan FY 2015 Expenditure plans
	FY15 Plan for Use of the County Clerk’s
	Records Management and Preservation Fund 0108
	and Records Archive Fund 0129
	Long Term Plan for the Use of these Funds


	Item 26
	TO:  Commissioners’ Court    DATE:  September 9, 2014

	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Agenda Request_Second Chance Act Reauthorization_091614
	SecondChance2014EndorsementLetter updated 9 8 141
	SCA Reauthorization Fact Sheet
	NACo_2014 Second Chance TPs
	LOWER JAIL RECIDIVISM AND REINVEST THE SAVINGS:

	DRAFT Court SCA letter_091114

	Item 32
	Items 33 34 35 36
	HFC Item 01
	HFC Item 02
	PH Tax Rate Item 01



